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DNEEH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH
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MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS

RERL

2011

@

May & A

The commencement of
operation of new sales
and customer service
centre in 27/F, Wing
On House, Central, for
business expansion
EHNHEEREPRS
RO IEXEARE - B
EEBBBAEPRKL
EBRE2TE

The commencement of
operation of the Mongkok
second branch
HAE-_oTERNEKA
AR %%

|
&

July £ H

Provided 7-day a week
service in eight selected
branches
ETN\EFEDITER
T REX

|
@

October + A

Launched new fee
schedules for on-line
trading of callable
bull/bear contracts
and warrants at a flat
rate of HK$4.88 for each
transaction

HHAE BB RE
EREBERZE —H2
4.88787C
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MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS

RERL

2012

February — B March = B May 1 H
Appointed Mr. Ng Kim Wah e The commencement of operation  The commencement of operation
and Mr. Leong Yean-Shen, Jimmy of the Quarry Bay branch of the Wanchai branch, total
as the Group’'s CEOs B BB D TTIRARE number of branches increased to 14

to collaborate with Mr. Chan Kai
Fung, the existing CEQ, leading the
Group to achieve further success
RAEXERRITREEEER(E
AREBITHER  HBEEITK
BRERBELERAFTELAEE
EH AR

* Licensed by the Securities and
Future Commission to carry out
Type 7 (Providing Automated
Trading Services) regulated
activity, facilitating new shares
pre-listing trading via the “BS
Pre-IPO Trading Centre”
EEEREGEL [RHEHT
REWB] (BTREXR[EETD)
R A EFTRERTE
[ FTREZ 5 ]

* Licensed by the Securities and
Future Commission to carry
out Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activity
BEEREGHL RHEETE
BI(EIEXREAH) MR

BARSEHEBERAT o

BT DTRARE  FAEE S
TREZ 14

—E—— | ——EER 5



BRQNCH NETWORK
DITH

Hong Kong & &

Head Office &= &

10th Floor, Wing On House,

71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FIREHER 71 FOKLERBEKRE10E
T:(852) 2532 7888

Sales Centre ® F$H &+

27th Floor, Wing On House,

71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central
FIREHER 71K RBKRE27E
T:(852) 2537 1371

Causeway Bay Branch §ai & 2 17

units 1 & 2, 12th Floor, Soundwill Plaza

38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay

R EEREIREBAGFRLI12EI12F
T:(852) 3926 3128

Central Branch & 21T

Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building,

58-60 Queen’s Road Central, Central

H IR B KB 58-60 F iR K= Mg
T:(852) 3961 6688

North Point Branch it & 4517 *

Shop 201-202, Olympia Plaza,

255 King's Road, North Point

b A 278 255 5 B #B /&35 201-2 5 &
T:(852) 3180 7428

Quarry Bay Branch | £ & 5 17 *
Cockloft Nos. 1-6 and

Shop No. 7 on G/F & Cockloft

Tak Lee Building,

No. 993 King's Road, Quarry Bay

8 £ R T 238 993 5%

15 9 1-6 57 B8 Ko 7 5% st i % P12
T:(852) 3550 7888

Wanchai Branch & {72 {7 *

1st Floor, Henning House,

Nos. 385-391 Hennessy Road, Wanchai
BT EFFE 3853V REEAE1IERE
T:(852) 3127 0888

Kowloon .3

Kwun Tong Branch 8 & 517 *

Shop 18, G/F, Cambridge Building,

10 Tung Ming Street, Kwun Tong

B BRE 10 BERE 185 T
T:(852) 3768 0888

Mongkok 1st BranchEE &5 — 517 *
Shop 541 & 541A, G/F, Bell House,
525-543A Nathan Road, Mongkok

AT AR EE 525-543A SR EE N
S541-541A &M T~

T:(852) 3604 1888

Mongkok 2nd Branch E &% =517 *
1st Floor, Golden Hill Commercial Building,
39-41 Argyle Street, Mongkok

AT EHI-ARSILUEmENE 12
T:(852) 3188 0928

Sham Shui Po Branch;# k%4 17 *
Basement, G/F & Cockloft

39 Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po
KIS N T 39 SR A T

T:(852) 3666 5688
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BRQNCH NETWORK
DITHEE

@

Sheung Shui E/Ke
Tai PO Kif @

Yuen Long ST e

Taiwai XE e

gy

TsuenWan £/ e

Sham Shui Po JFE/Kk e

e,

Mongkok it & e

Kwun Tong &iE e
Central Hiz e

Wanchai /& {f e

Causeway Bay i e

North Point it A e

o ///f

Quarry Bay il & Fe

New Territories #H &

Sheung Shui Branch Lk 41T

Unit 2007-2010, 20/F, Landmark North,

39 Lung Sum Avenue, Sheung Shui
FIKBEEREE 39 5% _EIKES 2048 2007-2010 =
T:(852) 3768 7188

Tai Po Branch X342 17 *

G/F & Cockloft, 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road,
Tai PO

KB BRI 141-1455R 44 T 2 B8
T:(852) 3763 3388

Tai Wai Branch XE 217 *

Shop A, G/F & Portion of the Yard,
66-72 Tai Wai Road, Tai Wai
KEKEE 66-72 57 ZEFAEH T ASR A
T:(852) 3763 3488

* Provide 7-day a week service

Tsuen Wan Branch £#& 5 17
Flat A & B, 12th Floor,
Hang Seng Tsuen Wan Building,
289 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
SEYDIRE 289 SRIB A RKE 12 2A-BE
T:(852) 3929 2798

Yuen Long Branch TBA 2 1T *

Shop 5, G/F, Block B, 18-36 Fook Tak Street,
Yuen Long

TLEAR BT 18-36 5 B BE 5 SR At T

T:(852) 3926 2688

i

T RE R

\
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

(Unit: HK$°000, unless stated otherwise)
(Efy : JBEEFIT » BRIFFFIZEA)

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HLFE

Increase/
2012 2011 (decrease)
—E—-F —T——F  #i08)
Results ES
Turnover = 228,707 188,202 21.5%
Other revenue Hiblas 36,972 21,630 70.9%
Profit from operations (R | 85,892 56,643 51.6%
Profit before taxation B F BT Al 73,351 48,635 50.8%
Profit attributable to equity HEE 2o % B P A v )
shareholders 60,636 40,618 49.3%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)  GRREARZEF GBI 8.92 6.69 33.3%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) & R&#E5E 2 5 GEL) 8.89 6.69 32.9%
HKSM Turnover HKS'M Net profit
HEBR 2] HEAT g
250 80
228.7
“"’ 70
200 60.6
188.2 60
150 50
40.6
40 &
100 30
20
50
10
0 0
2011 2012 2011 2012
Year ended 31 March Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE BE=A=1+—HLEFE
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CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

ERWE

w4 @0 = %

BRIGHT SMART SECURITIES

Chairman /&
Yip Mow Lum Bk

“Integrity, Sincerity, Fairness, Conscience and Customer First” are the code of
management and the Group’s key to success. Despite the challenging financial
market environment, the Group continues to gain market share by opening 14
branches and building its client’s base up to 60,000. For future, the Group will
further expand its business in the Mainland, targeted to be one of the most
sizable securities houses in the PRC.

BE [OIE - Z#H - 2F RARUERSL] WEEES  AEEERTWRRH - 2717HE
HARZ  2TBECETHE  EFABEK 60,000 BB ETSME - KRR KK
BB D HERPEESHTEREY  BERRZERARENFHZ— -



QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Bright Smart
Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2012 (the "Year"). Notwithstanding the challenging
market conditions during the Year, the Group continued to
develop and has achieved remarkable results with turnover
hitting record high since its establishment.

The Group made satisfactory progress in expanding its branch
network. Its fast expanding customer base which has grown
to over 60,000, which gave rise to the substantial growth of
turnover. Encouragingly, the Group recorded an annual
turnover of HK$228.7 million, rising by 21.5% over the year
ended 31 March 2011 (the “Prior Year"). Profit attributable to
equity shareholders was HK$60.6 million, representing a
significant increase of 49.3% over the Prior Year. Basic
earnings per share were approximately HK8.92 cents (2011:
HK6.69 cents), representing a year-on-year growth of 33.3%.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed
a final dividend of HK1.8 cents per share (2011: HK1.8 cents
per share) for the Year.

During the Year under review, active trading was nowhere in
sight for the Hong Kong stock market amidst uncertainties
over the global economy. Average daily turnover of Hong Kong
stock market for the Year dropped by 7.4% to HK$66.56 billion.
Dampened sentiments coupled with fierce competition in the
market presented challenges to the operating environment.
Braving the difficult market conditions, the Group strived to
develop its business and enhance profitability. During the
Year, the Group formulated marketing strategies in response
to market changes to strengthen its competitiveness and
managed to capture market share. During the Year, the Group
went against the general trend of the Hong Kong stock market
with an increased trading volume and an ever-growing market
share.

AAMAREZERT FEHEMEBERABANTEAR
ADEEMBRR(SE [ AEEDBEE-_F—=
FZAZT-HALEFRETAFEDZFERE - &
ERFEMSRERFBTMKE - NEBDTEF
WEB=ER LRSKSRERE - SXREEI TR
AR SL#= - RRABER ©

AEEFERDITRBIVSMBRR - TP ABCGRE
B =250 BB6EA THEEBRARER-
FEEBRGFELEF28TEERT  BHE_Z
——F=A=t+—REFETLEFED LH
21.5% @ RAES AEEE - R REEENR60.6R
BAET  BEFEAEBIENMNL.3% - BRERBNK
RBREM( =T ——F:66981l) R L7
3B3% - ARFEFE([EEE ) EBRAFEIRHE
RER BB =T ——F : FI1.88L) »

CIEAFE  BRIBRKEETHABRERTE X
BRRER AFEBERFEHSARRERLFE
TH74%E665.618TT c WERS N - M7
BMFORME  CERIBZERBIE  AEEEE
RENMBERE - NENAREFENFE - AF
BN AEBREETSELHTEARTERE &
TRILERFR T - INBETIBMNE  FARESR
PR BB L MIBEERNFEER -
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Since 2010, the Group has been actively expanding its branch
network to provide better customer services. During the Year,
the Group added two more branches (i.e. Mongkok 2nd
Branch and Quarry Bay Branch) to its network. Together with
the Wanchai Branch which opened in May 2012, its network
has increased to a total of 14 branches (excluding the head
office in Central). To enhance its commitment to quality
customer services, the Group has since July 2011, provided
7-day a week service in eight selected branches (the number
of selected branches has increased to ten since the Quarry
Bay and Wanchai Branch commenced operation). This
arrangement is a breakthrough in the industry, making the
Group the first securities house providing services on Sundays.
It better serves the existing customers on one hand and
facilitates enquiries and account opening formalities from new
customers on the other, significantly enhancing interaction
between the Group and its customers. Besides, the sales and
customer service centre at the Group’s head office
commenced operation in May 2011.

During the Year, there were several securities houses
canvassing for business with fixed charges and low
commissions. The Group has been keeping a close eye on the
industry development and will come up with new tactics to
consolidate its leading market position. In October 2011, the
Group launched new fee schedules for on-line trading of
callable bull/bear contracts (“CBBCs") and warrants at a flat
rate of HK$4.88 for each transaction, being the lowest level at
the time, which drew immediate attention from the market,
reinforcing the Group’s leading position as the “King of Low
Commission”. Since the launch of the new fee for CBBCs and
warrants of HK$4.88 which earned unprecedented acclaim
and increased brand awareness as a result of active
promotion, the number of new client accounts experienced
significant growth during the Year, totalling over 28,000. The
Group succeeded in gaining market share under the highly
competitive market conditions. It is heartening to note that the
Group has secured a total of 60,477 client accounts as at 31
March 2012, a substantial growth of 86.8% as compared with
31 March 2011.

B-ZF—ZTFE AREHBEARDITRBEES
SERAFEARAFIEME AT (RAE DT RERA
BOIT)  BRAR-ZE——FRARRZEFHIT
DITRBESCENE A (FNEEFERAT)
RIBBREEAXFPREOAGHE  AEER_T——F
TtARE/\RFESTERSERLREX(BHR
BB DTTRARBE - FENTIRETRE) - it
BRWERES  KAEREBRRERBNES
T —THRREEFPREHEEN  m—FmETHE
MEPERALRAP  AKIERERP ZREMEE -
AN - REBARATTHHE RE P RSO IRR
—T——FRAEARAR -

FRN-MHEEEZRERBUREBNESFT  UWEASE
ROGER ™S AEERYBEETEERE - THEH
ISR - UEREELENTIGHAL o NEER
CE T AMHELEESRBRTREER
S8 —Re488BL  KAEREBFLRERER
RBWBHENFEST AR ATSES - 2E
TAEE [FA—F] MBS - B 4888 TR H
BT HE DA - S ATARIRIE - N i E
HEMTE 2 MENE  FTHRLIRFSESEZE
Ko REEHHAILP DB EHEHE28,0001E - 55
BEIREEIRIB TR INIBETS - RZE—ZF=
R=+—H EFEHEEENL/E BR_T—
F=ZA=+—HARIERS6.8% * S AIRE -
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

In line with its product diversification strategy, the Group has
launched various products and services to cater to the needs
of its customers. To meet customer demand, the Group
launched the "Day Trade” (Z#1%4) margin financing services
in October 2011 to provide customers with credit facilities of
up to nine times, allowing them to effect day trading on
margin at a lower cost. In launching the “Day Trade” (S5 #)
margin financing services, the Group has conducted sufficient
risk assessment. Measures including restriction on trading
shares, limits on debt ratio and time-limit on automatic close-
out of positions have been taken to ensure effective risk
management.

For the global products, the Group launched the services for
trading China “B" shares, Singapore stocks and Taiwan stocks
during the Year and introduced more global futures products,
such as FX futures and agricultural commodity futures,
providing a one-stop shop for trading financial products while
laying a foundation for the Group's internationalisation. In July
2011, Bright Smart Futures & Commodities Company Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, was admitted to the
Hong Kong Mercantile Exchange as a broker member and at
the same time introduced trading services for gold and silver
futures.

The Group from time to time organises seminars in
collaboration with HKEx and major financial institutions to
update investors on the latest market developments. Topics
may cover the introduction of various investment vehicles,
analysis of the global markets, etc. to give investors a clearer
picture of the investment environment in times of market
fluctuations so that they may conduct a thorough risk
assessment before implementing their investment strategy.
Furthermore, in association with the launch of HSI Volatility
Index Futures by HKEX, the Group organised “2012 HSI
Volatility Index Futures Competition” under the sponsorship of
the HKEX in April 2012 to familiarise investors with such
products through mock trading. Such activities were well
received among investors and reached its maximum capacity
with 949 contestants.

AEBEREZTIENEMEKR  BERREENTR
HhEEERLRYE - RMREPH R AEER
—E—FTAME [ERR]BLESFRPO
REPRESENEEREER BETUREKN
RAEAFREIBEE - £HEHEMNRE - AEE
EY [ERE] REETRODNRRFS - BBHEE
R RHEEKRFRRESBFEEREES
AR Bl L o

RIREMAH AEEFRNELPREBA - # K
EhkalREE  RSENEZRKPEERIMINE
HELREMNESS  REPRH-—UAESRE
mEEBERYG  AAKEBERLENEREKIETE
fe—F——FthH AEEZENBARESTH
ERFRERAREBSAKNASBTEARRZMELE
8 FAHELESHERARPER SR -

AEBEFEAZMN RSB BEESIERE - 2
HTEHEHMEMTIREE  BELESERETIA
BWNE REMASTE AR N RIEES
DT RIEERE - M RRTE  BBRE
RES o WA RECE 2P HE 1B R 18 e BT
B ASEEERHMED R_T—_FHAMNSE
W I2012EKIBIEBHAELE]  BIREERBE
REBERMEZERERNE MBBIBNES
BEERINLR  2MAREELE LR - $£949
A2 e
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

PROSPECTS

Effective from 5 March 2012, the HKEx has implemented the
second phase of trading hour extension to align its trading
hours with that of the Mainland market. The Group believes
that the new trading hours will enhance the competitiveness
of Hong Kong stocks under the premise of globalisation. It also
bears significance to the development of Hong Kong's financial
market and may help boost trading volume of Hong Kong
stocks. The HKEX plans to implement the After-Hours Futures
Trading during the second half of 2012 and the Group has
already made appropriate arrangements accordingly.

The Group will continue to adhere to its stated strategy of
product diversification with a view to meeting customers’
requirements and developing new income streams. The Group
has recently been licensed to carry out Type 7 (Providing
Automated Trading Services) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities, fully reflecting the Group’s operation
scale, professionalism of its team, comprehensive risk
management system and its well-established corporate
image. This also marks a new milestone in the development of
the Group.

The Group will continue to position itself as a secure, stable
and highly efficient on-line trading partner and promote the
“Bright Smart” brand name to the rest of the world by taking
advantage of webcast at Bright Smart Finance Channel, the
Group's flagship information platform. To tap into the financial
markets in the Mainland, the Group provides one-stop
financial services for Mainland investors. Capitalising on its
solid financial position, quality customer services, superior
commission policy, reliable trading platform and good
reputation, the Group is well equipped to explore the financial
markets of the Mainland. In terms of branch development, the
Group will continue to expand the geographical coverage of
its network. The Wanchai Branch commenced operation in
May 2012, bringing the number of branches to a total of 14.
The Group will further identify sites with potential to open new
branches, aiming at a territory-wide branch network that
covers the 18 districts of Hong Kong.

RE

B-ZE-—_F=-AhBE BEXMEBRSE _ERLT
EXSHER  BEAESFMEXHHRER - KAKE
BEE  EERR—BEOARRET - X 55K
BRBERMIZNHT N HEATSSMBRAE
REE  NAMRBBRKRZRE - BRACF SR
“E-—FTHFRRETEMERSZRE A&
B KRR ZE LA -

AEERBEEERERS TLNERE  BRAEE
FPERBER  ARFAWRARR 00 - KEELR
RINEHBRH BB SR (F7TRZRERD)
Rk TRHEEETR] (FIOBRRAEEY) EE
ANMRBAEENZERE  BEROEREKFE - %
EZNRERELHEARKENRFEELSR @ R
R E NEE BT R A —(EH B2

AEBBERAZE RBRELSBNBLZHER
Ef - EBE TGRS MEa)BMFatERERES
BTR URSFeHERES mETHRSL B
ERRTESRMEES  AEEABEAKREELER
TS RRT - BREEENELRE N BE
MEPRY - MEEERXR BRNXSFERR
HEEEED ASEABEEGRUTERETESR
MG DITRERNTH AEEHEBRETIOHE
2 BHFSTRZZE—_FRARARE  E917
BEENETOE - AREREENECE N R
BATT BREDTHEHREHREDE TR -
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

Being a socially responsible enterprise, the Group spares no
efforts to contribute to the community and actively
participates in charitable activities. During the Year, the Group
co-hosted with Joyful (Mental Health) Foundation and
sponsored the “Joyful Charity Run to Ocean Park” and “Joyful
Charity Raffle Ticket” to raise funds for the promotion of
mental health education and drive home the importance of
sports to mental health. Besides, the Group has been awarded
the “Caring Company” logo by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service (HKCSS) for three years consecutively.

Thanks to the tireless efforts of the Group’s management
team over the years, the Group has experienced rapid growth
in size and achieved business diversification, delivering strong
performance repeatedly. Clients’ assets amounted to
approximately HK$10 billion. To cope with business
development and strengthen the management of the Group,
the Board appointed Mr. Ng Kim Wah and Mr. Leong Yean-
Shen, Jimmy as the chief executive officers in February 2012
to collaborate with Mr. Chan Kai Fung, the existing chief
executive officer, for the long-term development of the Group.
I am committed to working with the Board and the senior
management to formulate a direction that keeps pace with
the times and will lead the Group to reach new highs and the
ultimate goal of becoming an international financial institution
with diversified services.

We are more than willing to share the fruitful results with our
colleagues. During the Year, the Group implemented a share
option scheme for its staff to align their interests with the
Group’s performance and to motivate their continued
contribution to the Group. Last but not least, | would like to
take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all the
staff for their dedication and contribution.

Yip Mow Lum
Chairman

Hong Kong,
25 June 2012

ER—XEEHEEENEE  AEE T ROE
HE BRSEZRELD AFE  AEEHRLE
THREESARNED LBITHRESFAE

ERIRIVEETERERSERE|FEY Bk
EEEREHEEELE NRARSHEPHER
RENE2ME  BARE - I AEEDEES
= FRBBHEGIREHE (HKCSS) B[ R SRR

i i
R

KRAAEETEERERZFNS N NEBRE
MRER - EBEEZTEREEBAESE K&
EEAEFPEEDENEILIORE - BEEAEKE
EEMEEEER EF8R_T—-F_HAfF®w
RBPFESGERPITREEBITREAE - BRETR
BERRELTELAREHEDHAEEREERE - &
ANEREREZE RSN EERBRBAIE - HlE mEes
BEMBERFH  TEASERSEAKS - B
B A BB % T L K& B AR TS 1A -

BAERERETINEUR  RAFEARNEEET
HEBRERRE  FEINNRERAKRENE
BETRE - BFBEIHXRS - &i& KA
BEMEETNFHTIERMETUAROHE

]
BEM

55
—E——FXA=-+HH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

ERREEEA2 T

To meet customers’ demand, 10 selected branches are now opened 7 days a
week, and the Group became the first securities house to provide services on
sundays.

;ﬁﬁ%?%? AEETRRBESTERSENLXER  RABREEARHBRBKHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWED T

MARKET OVERVIEW

During the Year under review, the Hong Kong stock market
dropped early in the year and wound up with rallies. During
the period from April to October 2011, the aggravation of the
debt crisis in Europe and implementation of a tight monetary
policy by the Chinese government to curb inflation resulted in
the Hang Seng Index oscillating down from the highs and
hitting an all-year low of 16,170 points on 4 October. However,
Hong Kong stocks have resumed their upward trend since
November 2011. With fiscal deficit reduction initiatives being
implemented throughout the European Union and the
launching of long-term refinancing operations (LTRO) by the
European Central Bank to increase liquidity of the local
banking sector, the likelihood of a massive outbreak of a debt
crisis has been gradually mitigated. Economic data of the
United States showing signs of recovery has increased the risk
appetite of the external markets. Inflation in the Mainland
peaked out in the fourth quarter, paving the way for monetary
easing and prompting capital to return to the Asia-Pacific
markets and, in turn, Hong Kong stocks to regain some lost
ground. In general, the Hang Seng Index opened at 23,664
points on 1 April 2011 and closed at 20,556 points on 30
March 2012, representing a cumulative decline of 13.1%
during the period.

Hong Kong stocks showed volatility during the Year. Negative
sentiment dragged down the average daily turnover to
HK$66.56 billion, down 7.4% over the Prior Year. The average
daily number of derivatives contracts traded on the Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited and stock options contracts traded
on the Stock Exchange were 271,669 and 287,561 (2011:
230,120 and 269,630) respectively. The initial public offering
("IPO") market has also been affected by the market
conditions, several listing applicants failed to activate their
IPOs as scheduled or scaled down the size of their fundraising
exercises. The number of companies having obtained listing
on the Main Board and GEM (excluding those companies
which transferred their listings from GEM to the Main Board)
during the Year was 94 (2011: 101), and funds raised by way of
IPO were approximately HK$251.2 billion, representing a
substantial decrease of 42.1% as compared to HK$433.6 billion
in the Prior Year. However, according to HKEX's annual report,
Hong Kong securities market remained as the world's biggest
IPO centre for the third consecutive year in 2011. It is worth
noting that 18 overseas companies made their debut on the
Stock Exchange during the Year. IPOs by overseas companies,
including some famous brand names from Europe and the
United States of America, such as Prada (1913) and Samsonite
(1910), accounted for 52% of total IPO funds raised in 2011,
compared to 45% in 2010, reflecting Hong Kong's role as an
important international fundraising centre.
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Looking at 2012/13, whether the European countries can
weather the impact arising from the debt maturities on the
horizon or the United States will launch a new round of
quantitative easing measures, and how the monetary policy in
the Mainland strikes a balance between steady economic
growth and inflation control are critical factors that dominate
the performance of Hong Kong stocks. Since Hong Kong
stocks significantly underperformed other stock markets in
the region during the previous year, the valuations of major
blue chips have dropped below their long term averages. As
long as market liquidity remains ample, the Group remains
cautiously optimistic towards the prospects of Hong Kong
stocks.

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s turnover
significantly increased by 21.5% to HK$228.7 million (2011:
HK$188.2 million), hitting its record high. Profit attributable to
equity shareholders was HK$60.6 million (2011: HK$40.6
million), representing a sharp increase of 49.3% when
compared with the Prior Year. The Group’s impressive results
for the Year were mainly attributable to the expansion of
branch network and effective marketing strategies in client
acquisition which gave rise to a rapid growth in customer
base, contributing to a significant increase of commission
income from brokerage and promoting profit growth. Basic
earnings per share were HK8.92 cents (2011: HK6.69 cents)
and the diluted earnings per share were HK8.89 cents (2011:
HK6.69 cents). The Board proposed a final dividend of HK1.8
cents (2011: HK1.8 cents) per share for the Year.
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TEEERNEETE TRERBFHEAT R
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RENARFRLE -
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REMEMNB06AEBET(ZFT——F 40685
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HKS'M Turnover
HEBT EER
250
228.7
200 188.2
150
100
50
0
2011 2012
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE
Turnover

As stated above ,the increase of turnover was contributed by
the strong growth of commission income from securities and
futures brokerage segments, which was mainly due to the
expansion of customer base as a result of the expanded
branch network and effective marketing strategies. During the
Year, the Group’s Mongkok 2nd Branch and Quarry Bay
Branch commenced operation in May 2011 and March 2012
respectively, further expanding its branch coverage. As at the
end of March 2012, the total number of branches reached 13
(excluding the head office in Central). To enhance the quality
of its customer service and communication with its customers,
the Group has implemented 7-day a week operation since July
2011 at eight selected branches (the number of selected
branches has increased to ten upon the commencement of
operation of Quarry Bay Branch and Wanchai Branch in March
2012 and May 2012 respectively), making it more convenient
for customers to access customer services at weekends,
including opening new accounts, making inquiries, placing
orders and applying for new stocks.

HK$'M

Net profit
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During the Year, the Group carried out a series of active
promotion schemes, the most notable of which has been the
“New Fee for CBBCs and warrants of HK$4.88 (4.88 7 JtT #w &
¥ U B&)" effective from October 2011. Capitalising on its
reputation, capital strength and service quality, the Group has
successfully acquired a significant number of new customers
since the launch of the “New Fee for CBBCs and warrants of
HK$4.88". The total number of new client accounts opened
(after deducting the number of client accounts closed) during
the Year was 28,096 (2011: 15,866), representing an increase
of 77.1% over the Prior Year. Among the new client accounts
opened, 1,933 and 26,163 were attributable to the head office
and the branches respectively, accounting for 6.9% and 93.1%
(2011: 11.3% and 88.7%) of the total number of new client
accounts opened respectively. As of 31 March 2012, the
Group's total number of client accounts achieved a remarkable
growth of 86.8% to 60,477 from 32,381 as at 31 March 2011,
crossing the 60,000 threshold.

Number of new client accounts opened

HEYFQO
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25,000
20,000 ‘
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2011 2012

Year ended 31 March
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Total number of client accounts
EFRY
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] Year ended 31 March 2011
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Year ended 31 March 2012
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During the Year, the turnover attributable to the branches was REEDITHELEB0IFEET(ZT—F:
HK$110.3 million (2011: HK$37.4 million), representing a sharp JVA4BEBT)  REFERBIER194.9% 158
increase of 194.9% over the Prior Year. The percentage of HEE L IE E A82% (—F——4F : 19.8%) °

total turnover attributable to the branches surged to 48.2%

(2011: 19.8%).

Turnover distribution from head office and hranches

REBTRATERED
2011 2012

Branches 417

Head office #&17

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—HILEE
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A summary of the revenue from different business segments REBEEBHE 2 WEHEBFHINNOT ¢
of the Group is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLFE
Proportion Proportion
of total of total  Increase,”
turnover turnover  (decrease)

HREXE HRRERER 011/
Z el z pd=a'] OBid)
% % %

commission income from: RKEMNT&IEZ

AEBA -
e Securities brokerage o FEBHELR 113,388 49.6% 105,044 55.8% 7.9%
e HongKongfuturesand e ZEiBHIE &AM
options brokerage T 48,012 21.0% 30,103 16.0% 59.5%
o Global futures brokerage o EIFERE &K 42 16,459 7.2% 7,635 4.1% 115.6%
e Stock options brokerage o A% ZEHRREALAD 2,569 1.1% 781 0.4% 228.9%
e |PO brokerage o BHAAHABE
“u 3,507 1.5% 5,385 2.9% (34.9%)
Interest income from FREVE N S U A
margin financing 43,967 19.2% 33,019 17.5% 33.2%
Interest income from IPO EXRARZEERE
financing FEWA 805 0.4% 6,235 3.3% (87.1%)
228,707 100.0% 188,202 100.0% 21.5%

Turnover breakdown by business segments
BRERDHE D 2EXH

Securities brokerage

Hong Kong futures and
options brokerage

BEMERBEES

Global futures brokerage
IBRAEEL

Year ended 31 March 2012
Mgz —F=A=t+—-ALEE

Year ended 31 March 2011

Stock options brokerage [ HE-= E=f=t—QiaEE
EEFE——F=A=T— =

IPO brokerage
BRDMABERLRL

Interest income from
margin financing

FREERNSWA
Interest income from
IPO financing
ERAMBERENSRA , , , . HK$'000
T T T 1 :F;%i
0 30,000 60,000 90,000 120,000
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Securities brokerage

The Group’s commission income from securities
brokerage for the Year was HK$113.4 million (2011:
HK$105.0 million), an increase of 7.9% over the Prior
Year, accounting for 49.6% of the total turnover (2011:
55.8%). During the Year, the Stock Exchange recorded a
total transaction value of HK$16,303.1 billion (2011:
HK$17,966.5 billion), representing a year-on-year decline
of 9.3%. In contrast, the Group significantly
outperformed the market, recording an increase in
commission income from securities brokerage against
the downward market trend. It also gained market share
during the Year.

As to the global securities segment, the Group launched
the services for trading China B shares, Singapore stocks
and Taiwan stocks during the Year. With the increasing
demand for US securities from Hong Kong investors, the
Group rolled out its margin financing service in respect
of US securities in April 2012.

Transaction value of
the Hong Kong stock market
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commission income from securities
brokerage of the Group
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VI.

Hong Kong futures and options brokerage

The Group’s commission income from Hong Kong
futures and options brokerage for the Year was HK$48.0
million (2011: HK$30.1 million), a significant increase of
59.5% over the Prior Year, accounting for 21.0% of the
total turnover (2011: 16.0%).

Global futures brokerage

The volatile global markets prompted trading of global
futures as a hedging tool, fuelling the active growth of
the global futures market. Commission income from
global futures brokerage for the Year was HK$16.5
million (2011: HK$7.6 million), up 115.6% from the Prior
Year, accounting for 7.2% of the total turnover (2011:
4.1%). During the Year, the Group introduced 13
additional global futures products, including FX futures,
agricultural commodity futures and gasoline futures,
bringing the Group's global futures products to 50 types
as at 31 March 2012.

Stock options brokerage

To meet customer needs, the Group has introduced the
trading service for Hong Kong stock options since
August 2010, recording an income of HK$2.6 million
during the Year (2011: HK$0.8 million), accounting for
1.1% of the total turnover (2011: 0.4%). Stock option is a
highly leveraged investment product. The Group will
closely monitor the margin levels maintained in stock
options accounts and adjust according to market
conditions to ensure proper risk management.

Margin financing

During the Year, the Group's interest income from
margin financing was HK$44.0 million (2011: HK$33.0
million), a significant increase of 33.2% over the Prior
Year, accounting for 19.2% of the total turnover (2011:
17.5%).

IPO brokerage and IPO financing

Under the fluctuating market conditions during the Year,
several corporations put off their listing plans or scaled
down the size of their fund raising activities. The amount
of funds raised by way of IPO decreased significantly by
42.1% compared to the Prior Year. The unsatisfactory
performance of several newly listed shares and
investors’ lukewarm interest in subscription brought
down the Group's interest income from IPO financing by
87.1% to HK$0.8 million (2011: HK$6.2 million), while the
commission income from IPO brokerage was HK$3.5
million (2011: HK$5.4 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 34.9% .

VI.
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OPERATING EXPENSES KEMX

During the Year, the Group incurred operating expenses of AEERAFELERITABINAEBL(ZE
HK$191.6 million (2011: HK$160.4 million), representing a year- ——F 1604 BEBTT)  FRFIEI19.5% © KL EFH
on-year increase of 19.5%. The increase in operating expenses TERTEHNAFEAEERERZRARNE
was mainly attributable to the rising staff costs and business- % BB IRAREBHEBRZ L - A - &
related expenses as a result of the Group’s business RAEBER-_Z—ZFN\A LtTHENEERZ X
expansion and the launch of new businesses during the Year. EEER-AMHER  UWBAEEEESENLEER
However, advertising and promotion expenses as well as legal THERENEEBERBAIZ D BIR A 17.8% K& 55.1% °
and professional fees decreased by 17.8% and 55.1% IR BT RRARL T ¢

respectively during the Year, due to the one-off nature of the
promotion expenses and professional fees in relation to the
listing of the Group in August 2010. A breakdown of the
operating expenses is set out below:

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1+—HILEFE

Increase,”

2012 2011 (decrease)

—E——F —T——F  #in/08)

HK$'000 HK$'000 %

FET FET

Staff costs BIAAR 74,720 67,802 10.2%

Depreciation e 10,588 6,909 53.2%

Finance costs BT TSR AR 12,541 8,008 56.6%

Advertising and promotion expenses B4 RS EMY 6,955 8,457 (17.8%)

Handling and settlement expenses FEERGEEBR 18,409 12,270 50.0%

Information and communication B B

expenses 20,507 14,325 43.2%
Rentals, rates and building e E=MREFERESE

management fees 29,045 21,015 38.2%

Legal and professional fees FEREEER 2,961 6,602 (55.1%)

Miscellaneous expenses HMIAHRY 15,842 14,983 5.7%

191,568 160,371 19.5%
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FUTURE PLANS

With the second phase of trading hour extension being
implemented by HKEx, the competitiveness of the Hong Kong
equity market has been further enhanced. Moreover, overall
efficiency of the Hong Kong securities market will be further
increased by HKEX's other growth strategies, such as the
promotion of RMB structured products, upgrading of the
trading system, the alliance with overseas financial markets
and the plan to introduce the After-Hour Futures Trading
during the second half of 2012, Hong Kong's position as an
international financial hub will be consolidated accordingly.
Notwithstanding the uncertainties in the global economic
prospects, the Group will strive to capture all the opportunities
ahead and to cope with the growth strategies of HKEx so as to
prepare the Group for its future expansion.

Expanding market share

The Group believes there is still immense room for
development in the market, and will continue to attract new
customers and increase market share actively through
proactive strategies in order to get a higher ranking among
other Stock Exchange participants. To further the Group’s
business expansion strategies, the Group will continue to
identify sites with potential for branch development, aiming at
a branch network that covers the 18 districts of Hong Kong.

As China has emerged as a major economic power in the
international arena, the Group will strive to develop the
Mainland market and commit more resources to attract
customers in the Mainland, so as to increase revenue
streams. To increase brand recognition in the Mainland,
the Group will step up its marketing efforts by negotiating
cooperation with various Mainland media platforms to present
the live broadcast of its flagship advertising tool “Bright Smart
Finance Channel” (12 4 81 4% &). The Group's celebrity stock
commentator, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi, will conduct seminars in
the Mainland regularly to promote communication between
the Group and the Mainland investors and, at the same time,
share with them the latest development of the Hong Kong
stock market. Furthermore, the Group’s powerful and reliable
online trading platform allows the Group to offer one-stop
financial services to Mainland investors. The Group adheres
to its favourable commission policy which will also help lure
more PRC customers and gain a foothold in the Mainland.
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Enriching product variety

The Group will continue the strategy to diversify its products
and services, and develop a wide range of financial products
to expand its sources of income. In March 2012, the Group
was licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission to
carry out Type 7 (Providing Automated Trading Services)
regulated activity, facilitating new shares pre-listing trading via
an online order matching system, the “BS Pre-IPO Trading
Centre”, which made the Group one of the securities houses
in the market to provide grey market trading of new shares.
Meanwhile, the Group was also licensed to carry out Type 9
(Asset Management) regulated activity in the same month,
and is now formulating the plan to introduce discretionary
management accounts for professional investors and launch
the Group’s first fund product. As to the global products, the
Group introduced the US securities margin financing service in
April 2012, and is rolling out the leveraged forex trade as well
as bullion products, so as to generate new sources of income.

Extending futures trading hours

The HKEX plans to launch the After Hours Futures Trading
during the second half of 2012. To support HKEx's new policy
and to provide comprehensive services to customers, the
Group has made all necessary preparation and is in a position
to provide around-the-clock online futures trading service as
soon as such new measures are in effect. Furthermore, the
Group anticipates the introduction of “Dual Tranche Dual
Counter” with enthusiasm. According to the figures released
by Hong Kong Monetary Authority, Renminbi deposit balance
in Hong Kong stood at RMB554.3 billion as at the end of March
2012. The Group believes that such a measure will encourage
investors to invest with Renminbi, prompting heavier trading
of Hong Kong stocks and supporting the long term
development of the Group.
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conclusion

Leveraging on its energetic marketing and development
strategies, the Group was able to achieve rapid business
growth against adversities, ranking one of the few profitable
securities houses in the industry during the Year. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to develop a range of
financial products to expand its source of income. As the
Group diversifies into new business areas and expands its
scale of operation, it will reallocate and integrate its resources
among different segments. It will also implement effective cost
control measures to enhance its overall profitability and
operation efficiency, bringing better returns for its
shareholders.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group financed its operations with shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operation and bank borrowings.

The Group maintained a strong cash position. Its bank
deposits, bank balances and cash amounting to HK$397.1
million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$349.9 million), increased
by 13.5% as compared with that as at 31 March 2011.

The Group had total bank borrowings of HK$425.0 million as at
31 March 2012 (2011: HK$815.0 million) which are primarily at
fixed rates. The bank borrowings were primarily collateralised
by its margin clients’ securities pledged to the Group. As at 31
March 2012, unutilised facilities amounted to HK$1,648.0
million. The Group's gearing ratio, which is total bank
borrowings divided by the total shareholders’ equity, was
86.1% (2011: 184.6%).

As at 31 March 2012, the net current assets of the Group
increased by HK$63.0 million or 15.9% to HK$459.3 million
(2011: HK$396.3 million). The Group's current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities, was 1.42 as at 31
March 2012 (2011: 1.30).
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic
conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures
each of them maintains a liquid capital level adequate to
support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer to
accommodate increases in liquidity requirements arising from
potential increases in the level of business activities. During
the Year, all the licensed subsidiaries complied with the liquid
capital requirements under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR").

CHARGES ON ASSETS

No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31
March 2012 and 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2012, subsidiaries of the Company engaging in
securities and futures broking have secured banking facilities
from authorised institutions for a total amount of HK$623.0
million (2011: HK$466.0 million). The Company has issued
corporate guarantees for a total principal amount of HK$623.0
million (2011: HK$466.0 million) for these facilities. As at 31
March 2012, the subsidiary has utilised HK$325.0 million of
these aggregate banking facilities (2011: HK$145.0 million).

As at 31 March 2012, the Directors do not consider it probable
a claim will be made against the Company under any of the
guarantees. The Company has not recognised any deferred
income in respect of the guarantees as their fair value cannot
be reliably measured and the transaction price was nil.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS AND
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2012 were
approximately HK$36.3 million (2011: HK$51.5 million). The
Group did not have any material capital commitment as at 31
March 2012 and 2011.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a work force of 236
employees (2011: 228 employees). Staff costs, excluding
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$68.3
million for the Year (2011: HK$58.5 million). The Group's
remuneration policy aims to offer competitive remuneration
packages to recruit, retain and motivate competent
employees. The Group believes the remuneration packages
are reasonable and competitive and in line with market trends.
The Group has put in place a share option scheme and a
bonus scheme for its executives and employees in a bid to
provide a competitive remuneration package for the Group's
long term growth and development. The Group also provides
appropriate training and development programmes to its
employees to enhance the staff's work ability and personal
effectiveness.

On 13 October 2011, the Company cancelled all remaining
16,268,000 share options granted on 25 February 2011 and
granted a total of 19,578,000 share options under a share
option scheme approved and adopted on 4 August 2010 to
selected participants as incentives or awards for their
contribution to the Group. For details, please refer to “Share
Option Scheme” section on pages 54 to 59 of this annual
report.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the Group did not make any significant
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries.

LITIGATION

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited, one of the
Group's subsidiaries, is defending a defamation claim brought
against it by Chief Securities Limited on 15 May 2012 for an
unquantified amount of damages and costs. The matter is
now in its early stage of proceeding. The Group is pending
senior counsel’s advice and is unable to assess the outcome
of this claim, no provisions have been made in respect of this
claim. Except for the outstanding litigation case as stated
herein, the Group was not involved in any other significant
litigation as at 31 March 2012 and up to the date of this annual
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable due from clients, brokers and clearing houses.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
the credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable due from clients, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all clients including cash
and margin clients. Cash clients are required to place deposits
as prescribed by the Group's credit policy before execution of
any purchase transactions. Receivables due from cash clients
are due within the settlement period commonly adopted by
the relevant market convention, which is usually within a few
days from the trade date. Because of the prescribed deposit
requirements and the short settlement period involved, the
credit risk arising from the accounts receivable due from cash
clients is considered low. The Group normally obtains liquid
securities and/or cash deposits as collateral for providing
margin financing to its clients. Margin loans due from margin
clients are repayable on demand. For commodities and
futures broking, an initial margin is required before opening a
trading position. Market conditions and adequacy of securities
collateral and margin deposits of each margin account and
futures account are monitored by the management on a daily
basis. Margin calls and forced liquidation are made where
necessary.

In respect of accounts receivable from brokers and clearing
houses, credit risks are considered low as the Group normally
enters into transactions with brokers and clearing houses
which are registered with regulatory bodies and with sound
reputation in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as
credits are granted to a large population of clients.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure compliance
with FRR. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirement and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
long term.

Interest rate risk

The Group charges interest on its margin clients on the basis
of its cost of funding plus a mark-up. Financial assets such as
margin loans and deposits with banks and financial liabilities
such as bank loans and loan from a related company are
primarily at fixed rates. The Group’s income and operating
cash flows are not subject to significant interest rate risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily arising from
financial instruments that are denominated in United States
dollars ("USD") and Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD") is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD
to be insignificant. In respect of financial instruments
denominated in RMB, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances. The management monitors all the foreign
currency positions on a daily basis.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YIP Mow Lum

Chairman

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and elected as the
Chairman on 4 August 2010)

Aged 60, is the founder, the Chairman of the Board and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yip is also the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for the formulation of corporate strategies, overseeing
operations and the overall steering of the Group's
management. Mr. Yip has solid experience in the brokerage
industry and investment and has over 10 years' management
experience in securities and futures brokerage. He is a director
of Bright Smart Asset Management Limited (“Bright Smart
Asset Management”), Bright Smart FX & Bullion Limited
("Bright Smart FX"), Bright Smart Futures & Commodities
Company Limited (“Bright Smart Futures”), Bright Smart
Securities International (H.K.) Limited (“Bright Smart
Securities”) and Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited
(“Bright Smart Investment”). Mr. Yip is a responsible officer
recognised by the Securities & Futures Commission of Hong
Kong (“SFC") for engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) regulated activity. He is the sole director of New
Charming Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company and the uncle of Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, one
of the Executive Directors of the Company.

Mr. CHAN Kai Fung

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Appointed as a director on 4 August 2009 and designated as
an executive director on 4 August 2010)

Aged 45, is an Executive Director and a Chief Executive Officer
with overall responsibility for the business and operations of
the Group. Mr. Chan has over nine years’ management
experience in securities and futures businesses, and
specialises in IPO financing project. He is also a director of
Bright Smart Asset Management, Bright Smart FX, Bright
Smart Futures, Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart
Investment. Before joining the Group, Mr. Chan was a director
of Coin Fall Limited (a securities brokerage company) and
Lucky Man Properties Limited as well as the administration
manager of Maxview Enterprises Limited.
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Mr. KWOK Sze Chi
Executive Director & Marketing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 57, an Executive Director of the Company and the
Marketing Director of the Group with responsibilities for the
formulation of marketing strategy of the Group, the
management of the analysts team as well as the marketing
and business development of Bright Smart Securities and
Bright Smart Futures. Mr. Kwok has over 20 years' experience
in securities and futures businesses and has expertise in
marketing strategy, securities analysis and corporate
management. Mr. Kwok is also a director of Bright Smart Asset
Management, an independent non-executive director of
Victory City International Holdings Limited (a listed company in
Hong Kong) and has been a director of The Institute of
Securities Dealers Limited and a vice chairman of The Hong
Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional
Commentators Limited since 2001 and 2004 respectively. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Kwok held senior positions in Peace
Town Securities Limited and Cheerful Securities Limited. He is
a responsible officer recognised by the SFC for engaging in the
Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities),
Type 7 (providing automated trading services) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities. He is also a
representative recognised by the SFC for engaging in the Type
2 (dealing in futures contracts) regulated activity.

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson
Executive Director & Dealing Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 47, is an Executive Director of the Company and the
Dealing Director of the Group in charge of the daily dealing
operations of Bright Smart Securities and Bright Smart Futures.
Mr. Chan is also a director of Bright Smart Securities and
Bright Smart Futures. He has over nine years’ experience in
securities and futures businesses and is a responsible officer
recognised by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), Type 4
(advising on securities), Type 5 (advising on futures contracts)
and Type 7 (providing automated trading services) regulated
activities. Mr. Chan is the nephew of Mr. Yip, the founder, the
Chairman of the Board and the controlling shareholder of the
company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Yun Kong
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 46, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Yu is a practising certified public accountant
with over 20 years' experience in public accounting practice.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 53, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Szeto holds a
Bachelor's Degree in Laws (Hons) and a Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws from The University of Hong Kong. He was
admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1985 and worked in a
number of law firms in Hong Kong including Chan & Co., Y. T.
and Cheung & Co., Edmund before becoming a partner in
Szeto W.S. & Lee. Mr. Szeto obtained the Professional
Certificate in Chinese Civil & Commercial Law, a course which
was jointly organised by Tsinghua University in the PRC and
the School of Professional and Continuing Education of The
University of Hong Kong in 2002.

Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph
Independent Non-executive Director
(Appointed on 4 August 2010)

Aged 56, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Ling has over
16 years' experience in accounting, finance and administration
and has been a director and the company secretary of a
charitable organisation since 2004. Mr. Ling joined Midland
Realty (Holdings) Limited in 1990 and was the executive
director when he left the company in 1997. Prior to that, he
was a controller of Hong Kong Telephone Company Limited
and has also worked at Chase Manhattan Bank and the First
National Bank of Boston in the accounting field. Mr. Ling is an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Kim Wah
Chief Executive Officer
(Joined the Group in January 2012)

Aged 42, is a Chief Executive Officer with overall responsibility
for the business and operations of the Group. Mr. Ng has over
15 years of extensive experience in the banking industry and
financial sector. Prior to joining the Group, he was the Regional
Head of Bank Relations, Asia Pacific, at an international
financial institution where his responsibilities included credit &
risk management, assets & liabilities management and capital
& funding management for the Asia Pacific region. Mr. Ng has
assumed different senior roles in various reputable banks,
including Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited,
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Limited and Bank of
China (Hong Kong) Limited and has extensive knowledge and
experience in the operations of financial institutions. Mr. Ng
graduated from The University of Winnipeg, Canada, with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Arts (major in Statistics) and obtained a
Master’s Degree in Finance from RMIT University Australia.

Mr. LEONG Yean-Shen, Jimmy
Chief Executive Officer
(Joined the Group in January 2012)

Aged 41, is a Chief Executive Officer with overall responsibility
for the business and operations of the Group. Mr. Leong has
over 19 years of comprehensive international experience with
financial institutions both locally and overseas. He has
assumed different management positions during the period
and brings with him extensive knowledge in treasury, financial
markets, capital markets, fund and investment management.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leong worked for an international
financial institution as the Regional Treasurer for Asia Pacific
and was responsible for all aspects of the treasury function
across seven countries within the Asia Pacific region. Prior to
that, he held senior level appointments at an Asian regional
bank as the Treasurer and Head of Overseas Financial Markets
based in Hong Kong and other financial institutions including
J.P. Morgan and Standard Chartered Bank in London and
Singapore. Mr. Leong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electrical Engineering from Washington University in Saint
Louis, Missouri, USA.
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Mr. SHIU Yuk Lun, Godwin
Head of Legal and Compliance
(Joined the Group in March 2012)

Aged 50, is the Head of Legal and Compliance of the Group in
charge of all legal and compliance aspects of the Group. Mr.
Shiu has served for the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, Hang
Seng Bank Limited, DBS Bank Limited, KBC Bank,
commonwealth Bank of Australia and Citibank N.A. which
brings him with over 20 years’ rich experience in Internal
Audit, Legal and Regulatory Compliance. He is currently a
member of Hong Kong Securities Institute, a senior associate
of Financial Services Institute of Australia, a Certified Internal
Auditor of Institute of Internal Auditors Inc., U.S.A. and a
Certified Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. Shiu
holds a Master’s Degree in Laws in Chinese Business Law and
a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a Master’s Degree
in Accountancy from The University of Wollongong, Australia.

Mr. WONG Wing Man
Head of Information Technology
(Joined the Group in March 2009)

Aged 41, is the Head of Information Technology responsible
for the formulation of information technology strategy as well
as administration and development of the information
technology system of the Group. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong. He
has over 10 years’ experience in design and development of
trading systems. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was the
chief technology officer of Ayers Solutions Limited where he
was responsible for developing its flagship software product
— Ayers GTS online securities/futures trading system.

Ms. LI Wan Mei
Chief Financial Officer
(Joined the Group in November 2008)

Aged 28, is the Chief Financial Officer in charge of the overall
financial and accounting management of the Group. Ms. Li
has over six years' accounting experience, including three
years' experience gained in PricewaterhouseCoopers. She
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree (first class honours) in Business
Administration (major in Accounting) from Lingnan University
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Ms. LAM Mei Kam, Catharine
Company Secretary
(Joined the Group in January 2012)

Aged 42, is the Company Secretary of the Group. Ms. Lam has
15 years' extensive experience in company secretarial
practices. Before joining the Group, she worked in the board/
company secretarial department of BOC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited, Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited and
PricewaterhouseCoopers. Ms. Lam is an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and holds a
Bachelor’s Degree with Honours in Business Administration
from Hong Kong Baptist University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to ensuring high standards of
corporate governance practices and believes that they are
essential for maintaining and promoting investors' confidence.
The Board reviews its corporate governance practices from
time to time in order to meet public and shareholders’
expectations and to comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, as well as to fulfil its commitment for
excellence in corporate governance.

The Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”), issued by the
Stock Exchange, sets out two levels of corporate governance
practices, namely mandatory code provisions that listed
companies must comply with or explain their non-compliance,
and recommended best practices that listed companies are
encouraged to comply with but need not disclose in the case
of non-compliance. For the year ended 31 March 2012, the
Company fully complied with the mandatory code provisions
of the CG Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board’s primary responsibilities are to formulate the
Company’s long-term corporate strategy, oversee the
management of the Group, evaluate the performance of the
Group and assess the achievement of targets periodically
set by the Board. In addition, the Board has also established
three Board Committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their terms of
reference.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises seven Directors, of whom more than
one-third are non-executive and independent of the
management. The Board is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
Group's businesses. As at 31 March 2012, four of the Directors
are executive, namely Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman), Mr. Chan
Kai Fung (Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr.
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson, and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph. The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board at all times
met the minimum requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors, and
complied with the requirement that these should include one
such director with appropriate professional qualifications of
accounting or related financial management expertise. Both
Mr. Yu Yun Kong and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph have the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in the
financial matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the
Listing Rules, the Company has received written confirmation
from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors of his
independence from the Company.

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson is a nephew of Mr. Yip Mow Lum.
Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Chan Kai Fung, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and
Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson are directors of a subsidiary or
several subsidiaries of the Company. Save as disclosed above,
there are no other relationships between the Board members,
including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships.

During the Year, the Company arranged for appropriate cover
on Directors’ Liability Insurance Policy to indemnify the
Directors for liabilities arising from the corporate activities. The
coverage and the amount insured under such policy are
reviewed annually by the Company.
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BOARD PRACTICES

The Board holds at least four regular meetings each year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s
business development, operations and financial performance.
Notice of at least fourteen days is given to all Directors for all
regular Board meetings. All regular Board meetings adhere to
a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed
to the Board. All Directors have access to the Board papers
and related materials, and are provided with adequate
information which enables the Board to make informed
decisions on the matters to be discussed and considered at
the Board meetings. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any
Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice. To
facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required, and the Directors can
obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, four full Board meetings
and an annual general meeting ("AGM") were held. Details of
the attendance of the Directors to the Board meetings and
AGM are as follows:

Number of
full Board
meetings

Name of Directors

Executive Directors: HITEE :

Mr. YIP Mow Lum ML

Mr. CHAN Kai Fung PR R I 2 A

Mr. KWOK Sze Chi HEIEEE

Mr. CHAN Wing Shing, Wilson PR KB 5E A
Independent Non-executive BIYFHITES:

Directors:

Mr. YU Yun Kong REMIEE

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun AIEMEIT &
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph & B
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attended rate
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CERLE - RINPRRRERF  BEFARHTER
PER MG EEEAEHALRIE—FER BT
AHAABIEEALTZER  BRBAARARRE -

BE_T-—_HF-_A=+t—HILHFE E=gCH
TORE2REEFEEEN—ABFBEFAE -EF
REFSERMEFAFRE 2 HFERFHOT ¢

Number of

general
meetings  Attendance
attended rate

HERRAS

Attendance

4/4 100% 11 100%
4/4 100% 11 100%
4/4 100% 11 100%
3/4 75% 11 100%
4/4 100% 11 100%
3/4 75% 0/1 0%
4/4 100% 11 100%
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under
Code provision A.6.5 of the New CG Code regarding
continuous professional development. Details of how each
Director complies with such requirement for the year ending
31 March 2013 will be set out in the corporate governance
report in the Company’s 2012/2013 annual report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years with effect from 25 August 2010, which will
automatically be renewable for one successive year, and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving the other prior notice in writing (not less than three
months’ notice for Mr. Yip Mow Lum and Mr. Chan Kai Fung,
and not less than twelve months’ notice for Mr. Chan wing
Shing, Wilson and Mr. Kwok Sze Chi). They are subject to
retirement from office by rotation at annual general meetings
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
(“Articles of Association”).

CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term subject to
re-election. The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are appointed for a specific term. Mr. Yu Yun Kong
and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph have been appointed for a fixed
term of three years with effect from 25 August 2010 and Mr.
Szeto Wai Sun for a fixed term of one year with effect from 25
August 2010 and with extension of term for further two years
afterward. Either the Company or any of the three
Independent Non-executive Directors may terminate the
service by giving the other party three months’ prior notice in
writing. All three Independent Non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
according to the provisions of the Articles of Association.
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According to the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the current
Directors, or if there are not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to but not less than one-third, should
retire from office by rotation at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further, any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board should hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2012.

COMPLIANCE MANUAL

To ensure the Company operates according to the highest
standards of ethical conduct and professional competence, all
Directors, management and staff are required to strictly follow
the Company’s Compliance Manual which places them under
specific obligations as to the ethics and principles by which
the Company's business is conducted. With reference to the
applicable regulatory guidelines and other industry best
practices, the Compliance Manual sets out ethical standards
and values on topics such as staff dealing in securities, anti-
money laundering and personal benefits.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEQ") should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. To balance
power and authority, Mr. Yip Mow Lum presently acts as the
Chairman of the Company, and Messrs. Chan Kai Fung, Ng
Kim Wah and Leong Yean-Shen, Jimmy act as the CEOs of the
Company.
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Their respective responsibilities are clearly established. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board properly
discharges its responsibilities and conforms to good corporate
governance practices and procedures. In addition, as the
Chairman of the Board, he is also responsible for ensuring that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and that all Directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner. The CEOs are
responsible for day-to-day management of the Group's
business, including the implementation of significant strategies
formulated by the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, all
of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai,
Joseph, none of whom are involved in the day-to-day
management of the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Company'’s financial information (including the Company’s
financial statements, annual reports, interim reports and major
comments on financial reporting contained in the financial
statements and reports), examining and studying the
Company's financial reporting system and procedures
for internal supervision and control, and making
recommendations to the Board on matters regarding the
appointment of external auditors and the fixing of the audit
fee, etc.

The works performed by the Audit Committee during the Year
included the review and, where applicable, approval of:

— the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2011;

— theinternal control system;

— the interim financial statements of the Company for the
six months ended 30 September 2011; and

— adoption of new terms of reference of the Audit
Committee.
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Two Audit Committee meetings were held in the Year with
attendance rate of 100%. Attendance records of relevant
Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Directors

ERZEeRFAACHMARSE HEXE
100% - ERAERNHFERFINMT

Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman)

Mr. SZETO Wai Sun RIEHEFT L&
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph EBRBESE

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants ("KPMG"), be nominated
for re-appointment as the external auditor of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four members,
including Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, together
with three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling Kwok Fai,
Joseph.

The Nomination Committee was established to make
recommendations for all appointments, re-designations and
reappointments of Directors to the Board. It is also responsible
for determining the independence of each Independent Non-
executive Director and conducting a formal assessment on
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, as well as
determining the contribution of each Director to the
effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board's
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number
of factors, including appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal
skills, as well as time commitments of members. The
Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to review
the structure, size and composition of the existing Board, and
to recommend to the Board the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board members and senior staff of the Company.

REMIEAE (E/F)

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HESRZRE HE=
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
2/2 100%
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The works performed by the Nomination Committee during REZEENFAZIEXIERREZR(WER)
the Year included the review and, where applicable, approval =4t -
of:
—  composition of the Board and its committees; — EEeNEZESMHEARK:
— nomination of chief executive officers; and —  TREBHZIELZ R
— adoption of new terms of reference of the Nomination — REZESZHBEOEZERM -
Committee.
One Nomination Committee meeting was held in the Year with RBEZEeRNFRAEBRA—Kes HEXE
attendance rate of 100%. Attendance records of relevant 100%  EEEEMHEERFINAT

Directors are set out as follows:

Number of
meetings attended  Attendance rate
Name of Directors HESRZRE HE=
Mr. YIP Mow Lum (Chairman) ERMEL (F/E) 11 100%
Mr. YU Yun Kong REMI £ 11 100%
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun BIEI RS 1/1 100%
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph EBRBE S E 1/1 100%
Remuneration Committee YFHEESE
The Remuneration Committee currently comprises four FNEEERAEFEERMEER=RE Y IFRNT
members, including Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman of the Board, EERIMGTE - R E REBIE S AKX -

together with three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Yu Yun Kong, Mr. Szeto Wai Sun and Mr. Ling
Kwok Fai, Joseph.

With effect from 28 February 2012, Mr. Yip Mow Lum has BT ——FZAZ+ A BEXMRCERTH
resigned as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee but MEEg X/ BEBETRZEZEEKE - REN
remained as a member. Mr. Yu Yun Kong was appointed as SEHEREZEARZEZEG LR °

the Chairman.
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The duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Directors and senior management,
approving the remuneration, determining the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management and
approving the compensation to Directors and senior
management on termination or dismissal, provided that no
Director was involved in deciding his own remuneration.
Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 March 2012 are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements in this annual report. The emolument
policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence, as well as market
trend. The Directors’ emoluments are determined with
reference to the Company's operating results, individual
performance and the prevailing market rates.

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the Year included the review and, where applicable, approval
of:

— remuneration scheme of the Group;

— change of Chairman of the Remuneration Committee;
and

— adoption of new terms of reference of the Remuneration
committee.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in the Year
with attendance rate of 100%. Attendance records of relevant
Directors are set out as follows:

Name of Directors

FMEZE S REBEREETLRSRNERRE Z M
BRERBRAESSRMERS  HEFH BT
BEFLINEEBZHMEN  URHEEER
SREEERIIFRERRRBSEE 2 BE  EE
ETRSEATHBSFM RBE-_T——F=
A=+ - BULVRFEZEEMESFBERAFR
IS MRIEES - AEERE ZMEBERTIRREZ
WiE - BERBENARTEBE ML - EXHE
T2ERRR 2 REFE - AARBRRRITHHK

FHZEERFAZITEEZeRERL(ER)
=i

— AKBZHFHHIE

— ¥VHERREIRZEE K

\

U]]I]

— ¥FHEREEZHBEOEZRM-

FHEZEERFARBHA - REHE HFEE
100% - BRAEEHHFERFFIMT :

Mr. YU Yun Kong (Chairman)

Mr. YIP Mow Lum ERMEE
Mr. SZETO Wai Sun RIEHEFT L&
Mr. LING Kwok Fai, Joseph EBRBE S E

REMITEE(E/E)

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
HEEBZRE HE=
11 100%
11 100%
11 100%
11 100%
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT BEREZ

The Board is responsible for overseeing the preparation of EExe88 ﬁtgﬂﬁﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁzyﬁﬁiél
financial statements for each financial period, which give a B BEMBHRERAEETE LR AR ANRZE
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company, and IR ARz 2E NS TRE - REHE—Z
of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the ——FZA=Z+—HUFEZUEHREE EEE
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012, the EEBYERARAEE 2 FTBUER - %‘Téimﬁiﬁﬁ
Board has selected suitable accounting policies and has BRI HRREBZEAESEAUBEREEINES
applied them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong SEMER EHEESIE Z HE KGR W E RS
Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting B a B RBIB ISR -

Standards which are pertinent to its operations and relevant
to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and has prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR SMEBAZ B A
For the year ended 31 March 2012, KPMG, the external auditor HE_Z——F-A=Z+—BLEFE AEEZH
of the Group, provided the following services to the Group: EZsmESmmAEFEEHNTRE
HK$'000
Services rendered PR it AR 75 FEIT
Audit services BRE
Annual audit FEEZ 1,189
Non-audit services EEZ R
Interim review R EIE R 358
Taxation services T AR 59
Total Bt 1,606
INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT P 30 B 42 I L B B 2R
The Board is responsible for safeguarding the shareholders’ EE B ERERRZRERAEBCEENRE
investment and the Group's assets as well as for achieving the EXREEZEE Rl *EBERY —EXTEZ
objectives of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive internal NEPEIERFZU R AFEARNFTEEITZRS - AR
control system is established and implemented throughout EARERERERENAEBEY 2Rk - AE
the Group during the Year to meet the Group's particular HEFR WRGER T LRERGSIBLREES
needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by its nature IBEFEBE ZIRFE

can only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or 10ss.
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The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2012 and that it
considers that the system is reasonably effective and
adequate. The review covered all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls and the risk
management function, as well as the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to convene an extraordinary general
meeting and propose a person for election as a director.
Please see the detailed procedures as follows:

— the way in which shareholders can convene
an extraordinary general meeting:

Any shareholder(s) holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company may request the Board of Directors to
convene an extraordinary general meeting. The
requisition, duly signed by the shareholder(s) concerned,
must clearly state the objects of the meeting and must
be deposited at the head office of the Company, 10/F,
Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate
actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 64 of
the Company’s Articles of Association once a valid
requisition is received.

— the procedure for Director’'s nomination and
election by shareholders:

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should lodge at the head office
of the Company (10/F, Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong), (a) a notice signed by
such shareholder (other than the proposed person) duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting of his/her
intention to propose such person for election; (b) a
notice signed by the proposed person indicating his/her
willingness to be elected together with the information
as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules and (c) a written consent by the proposed
person for the publication of his/her personal data.

ExemAcRIBE_T——F=A=1+—HL
FEARAREMB LR 2 AEBEE R 2
EXZeRRREGAEARNEN ARME IIE
MEFMARRERER  BREVE  2ERARE
ZANEREEBE  UARAKEEE ST MG
R B TMERSZER EELER Rk
ERETZHIFENEERT RN -

IR R EF

BERAEEAFABRREIAGRERTAALLEE
SRR -FHAEFF2RTX:

— BRRAMKRRBBIAENLTR

TARTFERERE BFAANATEHRER
$$1EEJ‘5MO%E’]%%T?&H?§$A R
ARG - EHZBREARBNFLEAMLHR
RER YARFAR T%@ﬂ#%)ﬁ(%%ﬁﬁﬂ
RIEEET 71K LEEARE1012) - RUE
BRFERER  ARAERARREESERZA
AEAGNRERBEETY  WIELHVE
ke

— BRRERERBEENERF:

MEREERNRERE FRBEMALTGRE
BEERINDEREE  ZBREEAAQFH
ﬁ%%&%(%%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬂhﬂsﬁﬂ@z%@k
E1018) IR () —HHZE B RS2 MKRERE
ITﬁAAL&mEﬁHx%(%ﬁ%i'r%}\ﬂ%?\\)%i%
H’J%% NEKBERERZBATZENE
(b)) —1DHEEIRBALTERENRS  URR
E2# B m 5 Em iR I 13.51(2) 1§
FATEENEHRQOERBEATRER
ﬁﬁfl/\éﬁﬂﬁ’ﬁ%% o
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The period during which the aforesaid notices may be
given within the period of not less than 7 days
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the meeting appointed for such election
and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
meeting. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements once valid notices
are received.

Shareholders are welcome to send in any written enquiries to
the Board for the attention of the Company Secretary by post
to the head office of the Company at 10/F, Wing On House, 71
Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary would direct the enquiries received to appropriate
Board Member(s) or the Chairman of the Board Committee(s)
who is in charge of the areas of concern referred therein for
further handling. The Board, assisted by the Company
Secretary, would make its best efforts to ensure that all such
enquiries are addressed in a timely manner.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors'
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company
has compiled a Shareholders Communication Policy and
established various channels of communication with its
shareholders, such as publication of interim and annual
reports, press releases and announcements of the latest
development of the Company in a timely manner. The annual
general meeting provides an opportunity for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The Chairman and members
of different Committees are available to answer shareholders’
questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed at annual
general meetings on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors and details of the
proposed resolutions are set out in the Circular.

The financial and other information relating to the Group has
been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.bsgroup.com.hk).

iLﬁiTmEZﬁFﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁZL FEEH
FipstE - BT ERZBRRASRITAHR7X
AR ZHRED FEJ%HE R EIZER
BOBEER - AABEREEE T RELMBE
ke

ARABABRRAEEGROEMNEAESH - IR
ARZEERNBRBREERNNRERER  FETD
RIBEET 7R REBAE10ERARTMER - &
ANEERRINERNEREETERNESTEN
B REZEFEHNIEHHESTEHBZESEREN
ERERE -BEFSEAIWERDT  HEZKK
BNRERIDESRIEFFEEN

REEBR

AEANRRRERREERECREEREFR X
NEIE S ERRBABR REY ZHREER TR
B TEPERERFR  RARRZETER
BB LI ER LR AWM o REIAJERFBEFK
CHEZEIHER - TRUREZEEGIKES
FHAMEREZIEM - 1o - REEBFRE L
EJLKIEEEE%%(@%M%J§$ZL%)%Ei) 3
c TR RBRZFBEEHNB

FHEASEBE B REMERNEEHNBR
Fr 48 5 www.hkexnews.hk) & & A & 48 Uk
(www.bsgroup.com.hk) °
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding,
while the principal activity of the Group is the provision of
financial services, including securities brokerage, margin
financing and commodities and futures brokerage.

ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

Details of the analysis of the Group's turnover and profit for
the Year contributed by operating segments are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 75 to
147.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company before
dividend is HK$60,635,866 (2011: HK$40,618,068) which have
been transferred to reserves. Details of movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 24(a) to the financial statements respectively.

DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors recommended a final dividend of HK1.8
cents per share, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Thursday,
16 August 2012. If approved, the final dividend will be paid on
Thursday, 6 September 2012 to the shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Tuesday, 28 August 2012.

EFEHIREBE-T —F=AST-ALF
ErEFERERAAARENBAR (ALE)
2 EREEAMBEE -

FEER

ARBZEBRBR/REER  MAKBEZERE
BRISRESRRE  BREFLL  FREEN
kEmEPE&LL -

E Skl

AEBEAFERELHBER D 2 EXB BN 20
M & B TS R T E 12 ©

B e

AEEHE_T——F=ZA=+—HIEFEZ&F
AR ARG RAEERZB 2 BRSNS B %R
KREISEN4TE -

BERERE

A AR FE A A BR BS A iE A 45 60,635,866 78 7T

ZE——% : 40,618,068 B TT) c Zom K D EEE
- FRN - AEERARBAZHEZBHFHIED A
R AR BB R LM RAR M T 24()

g

EECRBRERPETI1.8BI - HEMAREK
RR-ZE——FN\A+ B (EHM) BT 2BRRA
FAREG LA ERTAIEE - MERE - RIEKHR
BR_ZE——FAARNB(EHM AR _T—=
FNAZTNB(EHD)BIARARBREEMBAZ
AR SR ES o
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the meeting, from Tuesday, 14 August 2012
to Thursday, 16 August 2012 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to attend and vote at the meeting, shareholders should ensure
that all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant
share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 13 August 2012. The Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Thursday, 16 August
2012.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed, for
the purpose of determining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, from Friday, 24 August 2012 to
Tuesday, 28 August 2012 (both days inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, shareholders should
ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 23 August 2012. Shares of the Company will be
traded ex-dividend as from Wednesday, 22 August 2012.

EEREROBFECFEUREZRE
FRRBFASA ARG LRFEZER
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ZtHNASEEEF LT WERBFELTF
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 24(a) to the financial statements.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 24(a) to
the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2012, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$193.6 million (2011: HK$191.8 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$239,000 (2011: HK$1,267,000).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set
out in note 13 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years ended 31 March 2012 are set out in the
"Five-year Financial Summary” section on page 148 of this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the relevant laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

[N
AR B Z BAB B FEE M IR ML 24(0) ©
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities, other than as an agent for clients
of the Company or its subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 August 2010, the Company conditionally approved and
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of enabling the Group to grant share options (the
"Options”) to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Group. The major terms of the
Scheme are set out as follows:

(i) The participants included any employees (whether full
time or part time), executives and officers (including
Executive and Non-executive Directors), shareholders,
suppliers, customers, consultants, advisors, business or
joint venture partners, franchisees, contractors, agents
or representatives of any members of the Group;

(i) The maximum number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the Listing Date (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit") provided that the Company may seek
approval from its shareholders in general meeting to
refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all Options to be granted under the
Scheme was 66,680,000 shares. However, the maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s
issued share capital from time to time;

BE HEIWEERQXFTZRHG
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(i) BEITEREZ S RAE B F W A REST
B TREHZAAEBREMITEIEERETZ
BERRHEE aHTEEAN ETABREE
TIRMHEE 2 10% ([FHEIRELR]) - AR
AR IR R R & Sk H IR B B 3T 8l
LR o ATEBEZT SIS TRE 2B Bk
BEMAEEERBTZ2ESROHEE A
66,680,000 i i {7 © sAT - A g A BB TEAR
BZTEIE R EBRRITE ZERERBRE
A EAth B AR M AT 81 B B B B R T 2 ] E
MHEREMEERET 2 RERODEE - M5
HBBANBTEEEEITIRA Z 30% !
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(iif)

No Options may be granted to any one person such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of Options granted and to be granted to that
person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company'’s issued share
capital from time to time;

There is no minimum period for which an Option must
be held before it can be exercised save as determined
by the Board of the Company and provided in the offer
of grant of Options;

Subject to the terms of the Scheme where any offer of
an Option is proposed to be made to any Director, Chief
Executive or Substantial Shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates, such offer must first
be approved by the Independent Non-executive
Directors; where any grant of Options to a Substantial
Shareholder or an Independent Non-executive Director,
or any of their respective associates, would result in the
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
Options already granted and to be granted (including
Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

o representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares
in issue; and

o having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each offer, in
excess of HK$5 million;

then such further grant of Options must be approved by
shareholders;

(iif)
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(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

56

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open for
acceptance by the grantee for a period of 28 days from
the offer date. An Option shall have been accepted by
the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the
Option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company on or before 30 days after the offer date. Such
remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable,

The Board shall not make an offer to grant any Option
under the Scheme after a price sensitive event has
occurred or a price sensitive matter has been the
subject of a decision until such price sensitive
information has been announced in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular, no Option
shall be granted on any day on which the Company'’s
financial results are published and (a) during the period
of 60 days immediately preceding the publication date of
its annual results or, if shorter, the period from the end
of the relevant financial year up to the publication date
of the results; and (b) during the period of 30 days
immediately preceding the publication date of its
quarterly results (if any) and half-year results or, if
shorter, the period from the end of the relevant quarterly
or half-year period up to the publication date of the
results,

The exercise price of an Option shall not be less than
whichever is the highest of:

o the nominal value of a share;
o the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock

Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer
date; and
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o the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date;

(iX)  The life of the Scheme is effective for 10 years from 25
August 2010.

Other particulars of the Scheme are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
outstanding Options held by the Directors, certain employees,
consultants and contractors of the Company under the
Scheme and its movement during the year ended 31 March
2012:

Options held
at 1 April Options Options Options
2011 granted exercised cancelled

Options
lapsed

RZB--F during the during the during the during the

mA-A Year Year Year
BAz AEERRY  AFERAE  AEEREE  AE
BRE LERE ZERE LERE

Year
ERAR
ZBRE

s ERREAHNAMEALFBABRMNNBR
A B REXRAIIFHRHE

(x) ZAEZARMH-_Z—TF\A-_THAR
BHTE -

ZAT 82 Lt F AR B B SRR I RE 25 ©

TEREBEARREST FTEE BEREIEABAR
B AR E A AR LRI EBRERBE T
—CEZP=T-RLEEZ BB

Options held
at 31 March
2012
RZB-Zf
ZA=t-A Exercise Vesting
Baz price Date of grant  Exercise period conditions
BRE e HHBH (igid BEAS
HKS

e

Executive Directors:

ﬁﬁﬁsi

M. Yip Mow Lum - - - -
Sy

Mr. Chan Kai Fung 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000)
RRsLE

— 2,000,000 - -

Mr. Kwok Sze Chi 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000)
PREEE

— 2,000,000 - -

- 112 25/02/20M 250022011~ Ni
20/02/2013
E-F E-F &
—“B-tREH ZA-tEmBEE
—3-Zf
ZA=t+mA
2,000,000 069 13/10/201 13/10/2011- Nil
121012013
“F——F —F——F &
tht=H TA+=zRZ
—3-zf
TAtzA
- 112 25/02/201 250022011~ Nil
20/02/2013
E-F F-F &
—“B-t8H  ZA-tmBEZ
—3-Zf
ZA=+mA
2,000,000 069 13/10/201 13/10/2011- Nil
12/10/2013
—5——F F-F &
tht=H TA+=zRZ
—3-zf
TAtzA
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Options held Options held
at 1 April Options Options Options Options  at 31 March
2011 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2012
R=B-—-F during the during the during the duringthe ~ R=B-=f

mA-A Year Year Year Year =A=t-H Exercise Vesting

BEz AEERARY  AFERAE  AEEREE  REEAXN BEZ price Dateof grant  Exercise period conditions

BRE ZERE ZERE ZIRE ZIERE BhRE ke RUAH fr BEAHR
HKS

23

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, 400,000 - - (400,000) — — 112 25/02/2011 25/02/2011- Ni
Wilson 20/02/2013
BxarE —F-F F--F i
ZAZtER  ZA-tE:BZ
“E-=F
—A-tmA
- 400,000 - - - 400,000 069 13/10/2011 13/10/2011- Ni
12/10/2013
—F——& —F—F i
TAt=H tAt+=RZ
“Z-=F
TA+=A
Independent Non-
executive Directors:
BIFHTES:
Mr. Yu Yun Kong 666,000 - - (666,000) - — 112 25/02/2011 25/02/2011- Ni
FEMEE 24/02/2013
5k —F—F &
—“F-thE ZA-tRHZ
—“3-zf
—R=tmA
- 666,000 - - - 666,000 069 1310/2011 13/10/2011- Ni
12/10/2013
—E-F E-F &
tAt+=R tAt+=RZ
“E-=F
TA+=A
Mr. Szeto Wai Sn 666,000 - - (666,000) - - 112 25/02/2011 25/02/2011- Ni
AL 24/02/2013
F-F —F——F &
—“F-thE ZA-tEHZ
—“3-zf
—R=tmA
- 666,000 - - - 666,000 069 1310/2011 13/10/2011- Nil
12/10/2013
—E-F E-F i
tAt+=R tAt+=RZ
“E-=F
TA+=A
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, 666,000 - - (666,000) — - 112 25/02/2011 25/02/2011- Nil
Joseph 20/02/2013
REREE 5k F—F &
—“F-thE ZA-tRHZ
—3-zF
—R=tmA
- 666,000 - - - 666,000 069 1310/2011 13/10/2011- Ni
12/10/2013
—E-& —E-F &
tAt+=R tAt+=RZ
“E-=F
TA+=A
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Options held Options held
at 1 April Options Options Options Options  at 31 March
2011 granted exercised cancelled lapsed 2012
R=B-—-F during the during the during the duringthe ~ R=B-=f

mA-A Year Year Year Year =B=1-H Exercise Vesting

BEz AEERARY  AFERAE  AEEREE  REEAXN BEZ price Dateof grant  Exercise period conditions

BRE ZERE ZERE ZIRE ZIERE BhRE ke RUAH (igid: BRRH
HKS

i

Employees 8450000 - - (6,370,000) (2,080,000) - 112 25/02/20M 25/02/2011- i
&E 24/02/2013
FF  ZF-F &
“A-tER  ZA-tEREE
—E-ck
—A-tmA
- 9,680,000 (3,140,000) - (170,000) 6,370,000 069 13/10/2011 13102011 ]
121012013
5——F B——F &
TA+=H TAt+=R%
—3-=F
TATZH
Consultants and 3,500,000 - - (3,500,000) - - 112 25/02/20M 25/02/2011- i
contractors 24/02/2013
BERARE “E——F —5——F &
“A-tER  ZA-tERE
“E-=F
—A-tmA
- 3500000 - - - 3500000 069 13/10/2011 13102011 i
121012013
5——F B——F &
+A+=H Tht=R%
—E-=F
TATZH
18,348,000 19,578,000 (31400000 (16,268,000) (2,250,000) 16,268,000
Notes: Hiat -
The accounting policy adopted for Options is consistent with that BRERAzeTRFEEEE—_E——F=A=+—H81t
described in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March FE 7B REIER Y S5 EE 5 -
2012.
As at 31 March 2012, Options to subscribe for a total of NZE——F=A=+—H  AREIREZT 2R
16,268,000 shares granted by the Company pursuant to the AR B & $16,268,000 B % 15 2 B AR AE T A B 5%
Scheme remained valid and outstanding and the Options REEKITE - MZEFERBREGARSE D 21T
representing approximately 2.4% of the total number of issued DAL 2 4% ©

shares as at the date of this report.
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2012 are
set out in note 18(a) to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the percentage of the
Group’s turnover attributable to the Group's largest client and
the five largest clients in aggregate were 2.2% and 4.9%
respectively. The Group’s principal activities are providing
securities, commodities and futures brokerage services. In the
Board’s opinion, the Group has no major suppliers due to the
nature of the Group's principal activities of providing
securities, commodities and futures brokerage services.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, none of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders which to the
best knowledge of the Directors, who own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital, had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2012, none of the Directors were interested in
any business, apart from the Group’s businesses, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group has a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme.
Particulars of the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are set
out in note 22 to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.

Details of the Director’s emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

B B 2 B

MRZB—-—FE=A=1+—BARFMBRATZHE
BRI B IRE I 18(a) ©

FEEF
REBEE-ZE——F=A=+—HIFEF A£ER
ABERAABFPALEREB ZEETEDRI2.2%
N49% - REBZ EBEKAREES  BRAH
EBECRE -BFEERE ERAEE I ETTEK

RIEHES  BakBEKCRS R ASEL
B E2HER -

RBZE-_ZE——_F=A=+—HUFE BEEM
Ao EE R NEMARE R AT SEIBR (
BARBEETRABRS%E) RAEEEMEKR
BEPhARER

EERBFRBh2ER

RIZ-—"F=ZA=+—H BEBEEENEMEE
SEEEAREEBENBEFREBREF ZED
(MEAR SR B2 RSN P A (T4

RAKEHE

AEERBBRHELTESE - BHIMEABEEE
HBEENMBRERME22 -

FENBUR

ARBFHBRZIZENECERESESLT
WM B RE - RFFRKERE

BE-_ T —_F-A=1T-BHZEFFHMILEE
hfiEmHFMALZ FBEHRNUHHRERMFERI
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Kai Fung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwok Sze Chi

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Yun Kong
Mr. Szeto Wai Sun
Mr. Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Yip Mow Lum, Mr. Kwok Sze Chi and Mr. Yu Yun Kong will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of them
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company at the date of this annual report
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 32 to 38 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not terminated by the employing
company within one year or with payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the contracts described under the section headed
“Connected Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.

=
FAREEARERN  ARAIZESER:

BITES :
RERMEL (L/E)
PRER & S 2 (7T AR L)
BERAKE
BROK R ST £

BYFHTES:
RENMI AL

BIfEMRTE
ZEBEERE

REBARBPDABMERMA - ExmEL  BRA
ERRGMEERRERERRBFAG LIRE - K
EHTEERAREEBEEBE -

RAFHRAY  ARAZEERSREEEBESR
RAFHERNERAZ [EERSREREBE]
_ﬁﬁo

EECR%iH=

EERNKBTZRRAFRG LBRETZE
= PREARRFREMBAR T LEMNR —FRA
PRERLE - IR IEFEAEMEINE BT #EE
T AL Z BRI EH) ©

EERERGHZER

BTIXHERS/ HERERS] —HMta4
SN MERIARFREAMER - ARF) - HEERA
A AEFEAHERREEZRRMBRRAHERA
SEXRGAIVENEFERIEERABERAERZ

B8R -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/CONTINUING BERXS BEBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
1. Tenancy Agreements 1. HEHE

The Group entered into several tenancy agreements (as
the tenant) with some connected parties, which
constituted continuing connected transactions of the

AEB(EAHEF) BEEA LRI E THER
& WEHEBRBK LTRIBETAEEZ
FERERS

Group under the Listing Rules:

Transaction
X%

(Note 1)
(Hizt1)

Name of

counterparty

X8R
(Note 2)
(Hzx2)

Term of
agreement
e

Amount for
the Year
REEHE
(Note 5)
(H7£5)

Address of premises
LES b

BT

Tenancy made on 1 June 2010 Victory Beauty Limited 9 June 2010 to 10/F, Wing On House, 8,040,000
(monthly rental: HK$670,000) as the landlord 31 March 2013 71 Des Voeux Road
WZE-ZF A—RAFIUZ LBERAREREE —Z-TF Central, Central,
A4 (AH : 670,000%7T) ~NANBE Hong Kong
“Z-=F BERARREHEF R
ZA=1+-H KREERE 1018
Tenancy made on 28 May 2010 Great Challenge Limited 1June 2010 to 11/F, Shun Feng 181,548
(monthly rental: HK$42,000) as the landlord 31 March 2013 International Centre,
RZF-TFRAZTNBTLZ REERAAEREE (Note 3) 182 Queen's Road East,
4 (A :42,0007%87T) —E-ZF Wanchai, Hong Kong
~NA—BE BEREFERRER 1825
“Z-=fF JEBERHL 1118
=A=+-8
(Het3)
Tenancy made on 1 March 2010 Well Point Limited 1 March 2010 to Mezzanine Floor, Peter Building, 1,841,778
(monthly rental: HK$160,000) as the landlord 28 February 2013 58-60 Queen’s Road Central,
RZZE-ZF=A—HiuZ AEBERNEEAEE —Z-FF 13-17 Stanley Street,
4 (A :160,000%7T) ZA—HZ Central, Hong Kong
—2-=F BAPRLANE13-175%
—AZt+NH SRAEF58-605%
RARNEEE
Tenancy made on 15 April 2010 Sea Magic Limited 15 April 2010 t0 G/F. & Cockloft, 1,049,577

(monthly rental: HK$90,000)

as the landlord

31 March 2013

Nos. 141-145 Kwong Fuk Road,

RZZ-ZFNATHARIIZ YEERNEEAET “T-TF Tai Po, New Territories,
A (A 90,000 7T) mA+HEAZE Hong Kong
—T-=F EENRABERE
ZA=1-H 141145534 2 B2
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Name of

Transaction counterparty

X%

(Note
(Bt

REHA
) (Note 2)
(Hzt2)

Term of
agreement

[E B3

Amount for

Address of premises the Year
IES b KEEAH
(Note 5)

(HizE5)

HK$

BT

Tenancy made on 28 February 2011 Top Sunshine Development 16 March 2011 1/F, Golden Hill 272,903
(monthly rental: HK$90,000) Limited as the landlord to 15 March 2014 Commercial Building,
RZE——4ZAZFTN\Biuz BRERERAF (Note 4) Nos. 3941 Argyle Street,
B# (A 90,0005 7T) EREE 5 Mongkok, Kowloon,
= R =k Hong Kong
—T-mE BANETADEEF9-415
=A+EA EALSEYN-NE
(Hizt4)
Tenancy made on 13 October 2011 Resultever Limited 13 October 2011 Cockloft Nos. 1-6 and 554,355
(monthly rental: HK$105,000) as the landlord t0 31 March 2013 Shop No. 7 on G/F & Cockloft,
RZE——$+A+=R5u2 Resultever Limited —E——F Tak Lee Building,
T4 (A : 105,000 7T) fEREE +A+=HZ No. 993King's Road, Quarry Bay,
—F-=F Hong Kong
ZA=t-8 BAMRRE2E IR
B -6 REERT TR
]
TOTAL 11,940,161
@t

Notes: Wit -

1. Monthly rental was exclusive of management fees and 1. AETEEEEEREM -
rates.

2. Each an associate of Mr. Yip Mow Lum, Chairman, 2. ZEBARRRERE PITESHIERBRE
Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the EMREE(TEEE]) ZHEAL -

Company (“Mr. Yip").

3. The term relevant to the continuing connected 3. FHAREREXRSRIA_Z—ZTEA—
transaction commenced from 1 June 2010 and ended on HRRE-_T——FNATBERILE(BIEER
10 August 2011 (both days inclusive). MmA)

4. The term relevant to the continuing connected 4. EFBERBEBREXRZRBH-_ZT——F+Z-A
transaction shall commence from 30 December 2011 =THABEZE-—NE=ATHAKILEE
and end on 15 March 2014 (both days inclusive). EEEWHE)

5. The aggregate annual cap for the above tenancy 5. HEZT—-F=ZA=+—HIEFE Lt

agreements for the year ended 31 March 2012 was
HK$12,336,000.

HEH# 2 @ FE LR 512,336,000# 7T °
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2. Financial Services Agreements 2.

Name of

connected person
BEALHE

Mr. Yip and his associates being
his sons and certain private
companies controlled by Mr. Yip,
together as “Mr. Yip's Group”

EEAREMEAT (AR TR
EEERBIZATRART)
Gifs [ErE%E]

Madam Hung Seu Ying
("Madam Hung")
gt ([Retrt])

Mr. Chan Wing Shing, Wilson
(“Mr. Wilson Chan") and
his associate being his wife,
together as “Mr. Wilson
Chan's Group”

Bk A (TRRoKRE D) )
HBMEAL(HEET)
G [k AL EERE]

Sub-total of Mr. Yip's Group,
Madam Hung and Mr. Wilson
Chan's Group (together
“Mr. Yip's Family")

EXLEE LI R
BAHLEEE
GiiE [ERERK] /it

Amount for
the Year
XEELHE

Annual cap
EELR

IPO Annual Cap
BRARBEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
HFREE LR

221,600,000

31,200,000

IPO Annual Cap
BAAHBEFE LR
Margin Annual Cap
FREE LR

24,600,000

82,400,000

IPO Annual Cap
BRAARBEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap —
FREE LR

20,000,000

IPO Annual Cap
BRARBEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap
HREEE LR

266,200,000

113,600,000

& B AR

Maximum
amount

for the Year
rEE
BEtE

Payment from/
to the Group
AEEXH/
FFEEEzEE

Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

Advance from the Group —
AEE 225

Interest paid to the Group
INTFREEZFIE

86,355,422

Advance from the Group
AEEZBK

Advance from the Group —
AEE 27

Interest paid to the Group
IRNTAREZHE

12,336,489

Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

Advance from the Group —
AEB BT

Interest paid to the Group
TRFAEEZFIE

581,806

Advance from the Group
AEE 225

Advance from the Group —
AEE 22T

Interest paid to the Group
INTFREEZFIE

86,355,422
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Amount for
the Year
rEERE

8,517

1,217

96

9,830



Name of

connected person
BEALHE

Mr. Chan Kai Fung ("Mr. KF Chan")
and his associates being his wife
and sister, together as
“Mr. KF Chan’s Group”

BRI S ([FREUE K £ D) R
HEBE AT (NEZTRIE)
GifE [REE T £ S8 ]

Mr. Kwok Sze Chi ("Mr. Kwok")
BEATE(HEE]

Note:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

Amount for
the Year
XEELH

Annual cap
EELR

IPO Annual Cap
BERAREEFR IR
Margin Annual Cap
HFREE LR

49,900,000

1,400,000

IPO Annual Cap
BRAARBEEE LR
Margin Annual Cap —
FREE LR

20,000,000

Mr. Yip, Mr. Wilson Chan, Mr. KF Chan and Mr. Kwok are
Executive Directors of the Company. Madam Hung is a Director
of Bright Smart Investment Holdings Limited and Bright Smart
Securities International (H.K.) Limited and the mother of Mr. Yip.
Mr. Wilson Chan is a nephew of Mr. Yip.

Maximum
amount

for the Year
rEE
BEtE

Payment from/
to the Group
AEEXH/
FFEEEzEE

Advance from the Group
AEEZBH

Advance from the Group
AEE 225

Interest paid to the Group
INTFREEZFIE

26,043,699

417,854

Advance from the Group —
AEEZBH

Advance from the Group —
AEB 2 BH

Interest paid to the Group
TRPEEEZFIE

et

Amount for
the Year
rEERE

5,522

FERAE  BROKHAELE  RREEERIEERER
AIMITES - RUTRIBTREZERERARES
B EHER(BB)ERAREERELRE &R -

BRI RIS EZ NG -
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3. Brokerage Services Agreements 3. RLERBinZR
The aggregate amount of brokerage commission income AFE - HEBEALTRAEBIREZELHR
paid by the relevant connected persons for the B LAe A BERTIWT

brokerage services provided by the Group for the Year
are set out as below:

Amount for
Name of connected person Annual Cap the Year

BEALHSR FELR REEHE

Mr. Yip's Group # 494,401
EhEELE
Madam Hung 1,050,000 284
Akt
Mr. Wilson Chan'’s Group # 939
R oK BB 5 A S [
Sub-total of Mr. Yip's Family 1,490,000 495,624
BESRERK T
Mr. KF Chan's Group # 83,722
AR S A
Mr. Kwok # 11,992
LA
# The annual cap is set at the de minimis threshold. # FEFRERRICHFEE
Note:  The amounts of brokerage commission income payable Bfet - (VAR TN 2 A FELL B BATER
for the Year by (i) Madam Hung did not exceed HK$1.05 105 B BB ()BRARZ I - EMEEA
million; (ii) except for Madam Hung, each of the other THEEMNZAFELLBESRATRIES
connected persons did not exceed the de minimis EERFE RNEEEREAN 2 AREE
threshold; and (iii) Mr. Yip's Family did not exceed KL Me B ATBR1AOBEET -
HK$1.49 million.
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Shareholder’s financial assistance

On 31 March 2011, Bright Smart Securities International
(H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan facility
letter with China Finance (Worldwide) Limited (“CFW"), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip,
for provision of a HK$310,000,000 revolving loan facility
from CFW to BSSI for BSSI's general working capital
purpose. The maximum loan amount drawn during the
Year is HK$280,000,000 (2011: Nil). Interest expense of
HK$3,145,095 was paid to CFW during the Year (2011:
Nil). The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.25% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on demand. As at
31 March 2012, BSSI has drawn HK$180,000,000 (2011:
Nil) under this facility.

On 31 March 2011, the Company entered into a loan
facility letter with World Mix Limited (“WML"), a company
which is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yip, for
provision of a HK$310,000,000 revolving loan facility
from WML to the Company for the Company’s general
working capital purpose. The maximum loan amount
drawn during the Year is HK$100,000,000 (2011: Nil).
Interest expense of HK$1,220,663 was paid to WML
during the Year (2011: Nil). The loan bears interest at
HIBOR plus 2.25% per annum, is unsecured and
repayable on demand. As at 31 March 2012, no
drawdown was made (2011: Nil) under this facility.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, were of the opinion that the entering into the
two aforesaid facility letters and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were on normal commercial
terms and were fair and reasonable and was for the
benefit of the Group and no security over the assets of
the Group was granted in respect of the transactions.
The transactions were thus exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule
14A .65(4) of the Listing Rules.

B3R 2 B 35 & BY

RZZTE——F=A=+—0 BITHFHFEK
(BB)ERQAR(RTES] NAFZHE
2EWBAR)EP BB (EE) BRAA
(THFERB] ERE2EEZHBAZARER
SIEREE RS ARBEBT RS RRA &
i EIR B 3@ & 310,000,000 7T A 1E

—REEES - FRNRDERERER
280,000,000 T(ZZFE——F : T) - FAM
F BB S S F BB 3,145,095 L (=&
——F:T)  BERERBEBRITAEREM
2%%¢ﬂ$ﬁ§ BEE R EEBRE
B -RZTE—ZF=A=+—0 BIEHR

B4 r"ﬂﬁEﬁHTISO 000,000 (=& ——4F :
)

H

%

=3 —¢2H2+—H'$ At GE
RAR([ttim]  BEXE2EESHEBZAR)
és%*ﬂéu# Y AR NN
#Ea%ﬂﬂﬁmmmmm%m FA1E— /%
BEE2 FRARDNERERBEA
100,000,000 TL(ZE——F : T) - FW[MA
Hm AR BRI 1,220,6638 L ( — T ——4F -
T) o BEFUREHBIRITRZEIF 2 012.25% F 7
i B REHRBRAREREERE - RZF
—ZF=ZA=1+—8 " BERREAE@ERE
—E—F T

2y
[ﬂ]

<

ER(BEBMIENTES)RE - 7] Ll
MEE R REIE TR#T IR 5 IIRE—%
HEBKRTYL  TBAFAE  BFALAER
ik URUERZERSHEBARRREE °
Hit ZEX 50 EHRRETLEMHRAUE

14A.65(4) 152 B3R - A RIBI IR E 2 3R

E °
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Annual review of the continuing connected
transactions

The Independent Non-executive Directors had reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were:

(@ entered into in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group;

(b) conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

(c) entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements. Those related party
transactions which constituted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules,
which are set out in the section headed “Connected
Transactions/Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
62 t0 68 of this annual report, have complied with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

68

5. FEMREXZZFEMR

BIYFRTERCD A DERER Z I E

2724 A A .
RZERS

@ RAKBZAER—REFHBIEFEIL

b) E-BRARGIXEBRTERAREET
AREBUE=EZIGHET &

© REEBEEHZE RAFR/ERFTA
AR BIRREBERENEE Z BKFTL ©

RRARIBAICEZE  UREES%ERE
ZERI 58 3000 5% [ A% sk 69 1B K B IS & RHASN
ZIRBRE] UERBREBSTMASHEMZ
BB 74055 [ B B B¢ £ R R AT it
FERER SRR ] RSB 28
BEXHIELRE - BEBEER LETRAE
14A38 16 - ZEHANE Bt E A S BIFT IR 2 FF
BHRERGrEBEEER R Ew  BLHEBEE
RBERZ KM - RRFIE AR ATHRAZE
BRI -

BEEALRS

REBRABEBBEPETZERAEATRS
ZHBERMIEHRERME29M « BRIE TR RIEK
BERS  BERER S (BN AFRECESE
2 IBERS /BEBERS ] ) 2 ZEMEA
TRHEEFLTRANEUAE -

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011/12



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2012, the Directors and the Chief Executive
Officers of the Company and their respective associates had
the following interests in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers:

(A) Interests in shares and underlying shares of
the Company

Name of Director Nature of interest

EEHE ERME

Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note) Interest in a controlled

BERMEE (K1) corporation
RIEEERER

Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner

BERME s EmlEa A

Note: The 450,000,000 shares were held by New Charming
Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip
Mow Lum, the Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr.
Yip Mow Lum is deemed to be interested in these
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive Officers of the Company or
their respective associates had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

EERITRAZRROREBRG 2ER

RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H ARAESBRITHE
HEHESAZHBARRNRA R ZRD RAEBKRG
FHEBUTHEZ  MZEESEREESKHAEK
BINE 2GR T BB T 2 BB MRS B £
MBITAERETERR S ZIZETRNVENG AR
GIE P o

(A) REDFRGRAEERD 2 ER

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

share capital

Long/ Number of EEZTHRAEZ

short positions shares BB

¥KE BREH B (%)

Long position 450,000,000 65.9%
e

Long position 36,012,000 5.3%
FE

fff5E 450,000,000 A B £ i 7 S A #E A B IR 2 A
(EESIREREAMEELERE 2 ARDH
B o Bl BEMELRRERRZERD S
R RS -

BREXERIN RZTE—Z—F=A=+—H A2
AIRES TTRARINEEEZBHEALHREL
AR B REATTEREE (EHFERE GH)E
XVERFTHE 2 E %) 2 iy - HEARMOKEHTHEE
ISR - MxEREalARRREBGESF K
HIERPIDE 2R E A BT 2 B CMAMTRCE: -
R LM ETAERETERRHZRETRD
BHIGARNE MR P2 s o
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(B) Share options

The interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
Officers in the share options of the Company are
detailed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
on pages 54 to 59 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year, the
Directors and Chief Executive Officers (including their
spouses and children under 18 years of age) had any
interest in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if
applicable) of the Company or its associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2012, the interests of substantial shareholders
in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of shareholder Nature of interest
BREREZRE e

New Charming Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

FRAERER QA EmHBA
Mr. Yip Mow Lum (Note 1) Interest in a controlled
Bk (K:F1) corporation
R EERER
Mr. Yip Mow Lum Beneficial owner
BT E EmEa A
BOCOM International Holdings ~ Beneficial owner
Company Limited EnEAA
RIRBER TR BR AT
Bank of Communications Interest in a controlled
Co., Limited (Note 2) corporation
RIBIRTTRIDBRAF] A EER
(Kiat 2)

(B) REMRHE

B FRITRARAA R TR AR
%% 545550 B 2 [BAEE)) —Ee -

B EXATIESN  REREMRRE > SEFR
TRAH(BREEZEBERM 18RI TR)
BEHER  BERITEEARBERLHE
BRI )78 T 45 B 7] 2R 8 AN 1% B sl H AR B X B A
o (HRBBAEREKIES - WER) ZHEH

TERRRAQAAREH 2B RKE

RZE-——F=ZA=+—H REEFLHERK
PIVEXVEE2REID A RMEARNE - RALH
RIRB(EF LB EOIDEBIERERABTFLE
etz AN R A SARRAR D 2 E R AR RN T ¢

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
share capital
Long/ Number of EE&THRAZ
short positions shares BHANBE DT
387y} R EE (%)
Long position 450,000,000 65.9%
5]
Long position 450,000,000 65.9%
TE
Long position 36,012,000 5.3%
A
Long position 50,000,000 7.3%
e
Long position 50,000,000 7.3%
5]
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Notes:

(1) The 450,000,000 shares were held by New Charming Holdings
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yip Mow Lum, the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, Mr. Yip Mow Lum is deemed
to be interested in these shares.

(2)  The 50,000,000 shares were held by BOCOM International
Holdings Company Limited, a company wholly owned by the
Bank of Communications Co. Limited. Therefore, the Bank of
Communications Co. Limited is deemed to be interested in
these shares.

Save as disclosed on page 70, as at 31 March 2012, there was
no other person who had any interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board of Directors,
as at the date of this report, there has been sufficient public
float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”
section on pages 39 to 50 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

it -

(1) 450,000,000 A fh R ¥T REAIERBER AR (EFE
THREBMELEZBREZARRE - At X
IR BN B T B e

(20 50,000,000 i f £ A 2 SR B BRI A IR A A (B R
TERNERATDZEREZRABFHEA - Bt - 28
RITIRODBR AR BN ZERMD P ARG -

BRETOEHEIN RZE——F=A=+—HB #
BHMATRARRROIBERD S - HHERE
(BHREHEEIDEXNVBE2RFEIDEHREAR
ARARE - HERHENRIEGEF R R ERG)E
B IHEMEBRFZECHM  HAREMTANE
ARB NPT 2 EERSORR

EERARERE

REARRANSZARERRBESESMRA &
EAREEH > ARFEHITROPEBIB25%H
NBFHE 6 LTRAAREZREARKERE

B3k e

EEEHN

AREEAL BT FEEARAEBRIMER
EBAUEZEBRITRAER -

EER

ARRFRAZ EBEREEAFRBNAFRE 39
ES50B 2 [¥ERRE] & -

BAFHTES 2B MER

ARREEESBIIFNTES 2 FEERE - #
REERFE EWHRAEINBG B - KRFIR
RERBIIIFNTEFTHRBILAL

BABHERMEEERAT ¢« —T——/ —_FFH 71



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRSE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012
have been audited by Messrs. KPMG, who will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Messrs. KPMG, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
KPMG as the independent auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the
taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to the
shares of the Company, they are advised to consult an expert.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of
accounts for each financial period, which gives a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. In preparing these accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2012, the Board of Directors has
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent
and reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going
concern basis. The Board of Directors is responsible for
keeping proper accounting records which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Kai Fung
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
25 June 2012

BB
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B R BEN R E

N

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out
on pages 75 to 147, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

HRTESEREEARAARRZ
B2 BERE
(REE#HBIMA L HRAAF])

AZBE (A TEE M) EEAIERESE
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EERGEMBRRARENER

BERARNESAARREBE LG ASEMANE
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’'s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

25 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEZEBRER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE (LETIIT)

Turnover o 3 228,707,159 188,201,889
Other revenue H s 4 36,971,598 21,630,482
Other net loss E M Esis e 8 5 (759,801) (826,266)
264,918,956 209,006,105

Staff costs BT A 6(b) (74,719,545) (67,802,349)
Depreciation e (10,588,179) (6,908,917)
Other operating expenses EMEEMs 6(c) (93,719,607) (77,652,097)
Profit from operations KRR 85,891,625 56,642,742
Finance costs B RS R AR 6(a) (12,541,095) (8,008,036)
Profit before taxation BB AE R 6 73,350,530 48,634,706
Income tax FriS i 7 (12,714,664) (8,016,638)
Profit and total comprehensive EmRREGFERNRER

income attributable to equity EE2EKSAE

shareholders for the year 60,635,866 40,618,068
Earnings per share BRER
Basic (cents) EAR (L) 11 8.92 6.69
Diluted (cents) #58 (1) 11 8.89 6.69

The notes on pages 81 to 147 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends declared for the year are set
out in note 24(b).

FIEUT B ZMEBRILEMBEREREF LD
FATIRBE ZFIEHNHTE24(0)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

SREPBRRE

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-FE——F=H=+—H (L FETIT)

FINANCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets kRBEE
Fixed assets TEE 13 26,197,007 23,897,559
Other non-current assets HEtIERBEE 14 8,490,032 21,868,923
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 34,687,039 45,766,482
Current assets REEE
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3R 15 1,145,959,330  1,344,636,595
Other receivables, deposits and H bl EIE -

prepayments BZ& RIERNFKIE 16 12,479,669 12,885,488
Taxation recoverable AT Uy Bl £ T8 23(a) = 1,818,947
Cash and cash equivalents HEeMEEEED 17(a) 397,052,989 349,858,257
Total current assets REEEAE 1,555,491,988  1,709,199,287
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JERTBR R 19 469,737,171 475,966,075
Accrued expenses and other payables FERT RS M EL At PR RR 20 17,687,699 19,751,202
Bank loans ST 21 425,000,000 815,000,000
Current taxation BNEAR 18 23(a) 3,763,141 2,154,300
Amount due to a related company BN —REBEQTRIA 29(c)(iv) 180,000,000 —
Total current liabilities REEEALE 1,096,188,011  1,312,871,577
Net current assets RBEEFE 459,303,977 396,327,710
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABAER 493,991,016 442,094,192
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 23(b) 192,551 515,059
NET ASSETS EEEE 493,798,465 441,579,133
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
aE MR R

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-FE——F=H=+—H (L FETIT)

EQUITY i
Share capital & A 24 204,846,600 203,904,600
Share premium by 24 181,907,382 192,255,508
Merger reserve GG 24 (19,999,991) (19,999,991)
Share option reserve PR 24 3,427,420 2,749,525
Retained profits REB &= 7 123,617,054 62,669,491
TOTAL EQUITY EEBE 493,798,465 441,579,133
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors KEFEN _T—_F A+ HAETEET
on 25 June 2012. o
Directors
EF
Yip Mow Lum Chan Kai Fung
ERM R s U
The notes on pages 81 to 147 form part of these financial F 812147 B2 MBI SR T EF LD -

statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR R AR

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-FE——F=H=+—H (L FETIT)

Non-current assets kRBEE

Investment in subsidiaries RSB AR ZIEE 18 4,089,750 2,750,305
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 4,089,750 2,750,305
Current assets REBEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A R FRIE 18(b) 395,999,992 430,999,992
Cash and cash equivalents B RIRSZEEY 17(a) 3,058,959 5,912,091

Total current assets RBEEHAE 399,058,951 436,912,083
Current liabilities REBAE

Other payables H MR 0B 20 17,325 —
Amounts due to subsidiaries Nl NG E ] 18(b) 1,271,713 1,235,713
Bank loans SRITER 21 — 40,000,000
Total current liabilities REBAEARE 1,289,038 41,235,713
Net current assets RBEEFE 397,769,913 395,676,370
NET ASSETS EEFE 401,859,663 398,426,675
EQUITY s

Share capital A% 7 24 204,846,600 203,904,600
Share premium f& 7% B 24 181,907,382 192,255,508
Share option reserve B AR 24 3,427,420 2,749,525
Retained profits/(Accumulated losses) R, (E:tksiE) 11,678,261 (482,958)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 401,859,663 398,426,675

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 25 June 2012.

Yip Mow Lum
EEM

Directors
EBEE

The notes on pages 81 to 147 form part of these financial

Statements.
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BEERN _T——FNA-TRHBHENIRET

o

Chan Kai Fung
[C3504

FEI 27 B ZNFBRILETBREREFILS -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEZREER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE (LETIIT)

Share
Share Share Merger option Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity

(&S AR E atEE  BRERE REEF RAE
$ $

T T T T ; T

Balance at 1 April 2010 R-B-Ef
B—Az#&t 130,000,009 — — — 22,051,423 152,051,432

Changes in equity for the year HZ=-Z——F

ended 31 March 2011: ZA=+t—-HLEE
ZREREE

Merger reserve arising from BHREEZEHRHE

reorganisation 24(a)ii) (130,000,001) — (19,999,991) — —  (149,999,992)
Issue of shares pursuant to RIREAEITAD

reorganisation 24(c)(i) 149,999,992 — — — — 149,999,992
Issue of new shares in HIRARBERET

Initial Public Offering Gl <) 24(c)(i) 53,904,600 233,574,602 — — — 287,479,202
Share issuance costs R A7 B 1 TRUAR —  (41,319,094) — — —  (41,319,094)
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFI R 2 ER 458

income for the year — — — — 40,618,068 40,618,068
Equity-settled share-based EXEEURN A

payments Hig v HIA — — — 2,749,525 — 2,749,525

Balance at 31 March 2011 HN-E——&

ZRA=t+—-Bz&&H 203,904,600 192,255,508 (19,999,991) 2,749,525 62,669,491 441,579,133
Balance at 1 April 2011 HR-e——&
B—Az#&e 203,904,600 192,255,508 (19,999,991) 2,749,525 62,669,491 441,579,133

Changes in equity for the year HZ=-Z——#F

ended 31 March 2012: ZA=+t—-HLEE
ZRERRE

Dividend paid during the year FRIRATARS 24(b) —  (12,234,276) — — —  (12,234,276)
Shares issued under B EET

share option scheme BREITRG 24(c)iir) 942,000 1,886,150 — (661,550) — 2,166,600
Profit and total comprehensive  FREFI R 2 E R4 EE

income for the year — — — — 60,635,866 60,635,866
Equity-settled share-based BREENRN A

payments i 1A — — — 1,339,445 311,697 1,651,142

Balance at 31 March 2012 R-E——-&
ZA=t—-HBz&H 204,846,600 181,907,382  (19,999,991) 3427420 123,617,054 493,798,465

The notes on pages 81 to 147 form part of these financial FEE 47 B 2 MBI EHBHREREF LD -
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE—FT——F=A=1+—HIFFE (LETIIT)

Operating activities RETE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 484 215 (FRA)IRE 17(b) 289,214,946 (249,371,517)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid B EER G (9,609,384) (15,622,207)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESTERE,

operating activities (FTRB&FE 279,605,562 (264,993,724)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BERETEFEEMNK (14,210,677) (23,615,275)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HERBTEEEMSRIE 270,000 —
Interest received EHAFE 14,138,618 4,833,572
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREZHFRE

investing activities (FRA)REFHE 197,941 (18,781,703)
Financing activities REEE
(Repayment of)/proceeds from bank loans $R1TE % (B5%) FRi5511E (390,000,000) 374,000,000
Proceeds from a related company loan  —xREEQ R ERAERIE 180,000,000 —
Dividend paid EfRRE (12,234,276)  (136,050,000)
Interest paid EfFIE (12,541,095) (8,008,036)
Proceeds from shares issued BT TGI8 2,166,600 287,479,202
Payment of share issuance costs AR BT — (41,319,094)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE (FTR),
_financing activites | Frisnems ! (252,608, 771)) = 476,102,072
Net increase in cash and RERBESESEYIGMFE

cash equivalents 47,194,732 192,326,645
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April RMA—BZHRER

REeZEY 349,858,257 157,531,612

Cash and cash equivalents at R=A=+—HBZzHE&RK

31 March REeZEY 17(a) 397,052,989 349,858,257

The notes on pages 81 to 147 form part of these financial FE81E47 B MBI S TR EF LD -

Statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited
("the Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 4 August 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office of the Company is Scotia
Centre, 4th Floor, P.O. Box 2804, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman Islands. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2012
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the financial
Statements.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of
the Group to rationalise the group structure in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Company became
the holding company of the Group on 29 June 2010.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 12 August 2010. The
Company's shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on
25 August 2010.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSS,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements for the current and prior accounting
periods:

o HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party
disclosures

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 32).

The impacts of the above developments are
discussed below:

o HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition
of a related party. As a result, the Group has
re-assessed the identification of related
parties and concluded that the revised
definition does not have any material impact
on the Group's related party disclosures in
the current and previous period. HKAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-
related entities. This does not impact the
Group because the Group is not a
government-related entity.

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus
standard introduces a number of
amendments to the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s financial instruments in note 27 has
been conformed to the amended disclosure
requirements. These amendments do not
have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous
periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or in the year of the revision and
future years if the revision affects both current and
future years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group has
the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently
are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(f)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

Business combinations involving
entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses as if they
had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came
under the control of the controlling parties.

The net assets of the combining entities or
business are recognised at the carrying
values prior to the common control
combination.

The consolidated financial statements
include the results of each of the combining
entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when combining
entities or business first came under the
control of the controlling parties, where this
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the
consolidated financial statements are
presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous reporting
date or when they first came under control
of the controlling parties, whichever is
shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 2(f)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of

items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual

value, if any, using the straight-line method over

their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term
of lease or 3 years

— Motor vehicles 5years
— Office equipment 5years
— Furniture and fixtures 5years
— Computers and software 5years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Operating lease charges

()

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases. Where the Group
has the use of assets under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and accounts receivable
and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries and accounts
receivable and other receivables that are
carried at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount in
the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(f)(ii).
The impairment 1oss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2 (f)(ii).

2

BEXEFEE(E)
(e) FEHEIZH

()

LI AT A 1 2 B KRR o Bl e
TAKEZHE 90 BELKERD -
MASREERELEROTZEE  BIR
BHASXNzREAERNEMMREZE
AT UEBD IR Ea R e - B
FEHMEEFRERRBEEEEMEL
ZHmEARIE G - BEZEAER
RIS ER R FHSRB 2 EXED
FAREERNEELZ S HEANER
R

BEERE
(i) RHEEBLIEZREURERRSE
H it e 5k T L 1E

AR R AT R 2 R B A
BIZIE - AR AR S ELAd R UK
ARNERE A HERN - UWEAS
EERERR - WEFETAZEE
B EAREBREE ERN
T

— HRMBRARZREMmME
RN (B85 18 Y AR 18 B i 2(1) (i) FfY
IR E Z AU Bl FR B A
REECEZETE - HRE
B &£ 2R P st AR A & TE AT UK
B8z bat HIRA N E
8 Rl EIRERE -

BABHERMEEERAT ¢« —T——/ —_FFH 87



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ¥R R B

2

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and accounts receivable
and other receivables (Continued)

For accounts receivable and other
receivables carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to
identify indications that fixed assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(®

(h)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of fixed assets (Continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior periods.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the period
in which the reversals are recognised.

Accounts receivable and other
receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(f)(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 2(f)(i)).

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

@

(k)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, and demand deposits with banks.

Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees.

(i) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred.

(i)  The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at the grant date using
the Black-Scholes model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Employee benefits (Continued)

)

(i) (Continued)

Where the Company enters into equity-
settled share-based payment arrangements
involving employees of subsidiaries, the cost
is recognised in “Investment in subsidiaries”
and credited to the “Share option reserve”
over the vesting period. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the vested option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or 10ss
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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2

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each reporting date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEAREHBEK(E)
(Continued)
(I) Income tax (Continued) () FrEH(E)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and — MECLHBEEENLBEMS @ MiZ
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied SEENBEHER —HEEERT
by the same taxation authority on either: THEREBBW G HRER
—  the same taxable entity; or — [F—ERMREE: X
— different taxable entities, which, in — TRERHER MZEE

each future period in which significant SETEIE TR KRR
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or HEENEEATEESRK
assets are expected to be settled or B 7 S ERRARE @ 1&)F58
recovered, intend to realise the current EEGHABHREEENRE
tax assets and settle the current tax EBEAHRIEAE - kERE
liabilities on a net basis or realise and TR REE -

settle simultaneously.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities (m) BERSIARERE
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of RAEEBERBEFSHEAE X XZNETE
uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a BE - MEITZE(ERATGEA M LR
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result i BeeMEH AT G RTR BT
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of HEERF SR Bt B EmREE -
economic benefits will be required to settle the WEBKEEBESZEAN  AILZBEEITE
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. EFRMAS C RERE -

Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of HMEEBLERZF L AT A o
economic benefits will be required, or the amount AW EBREEL A G fled
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is ZETHEAXAREE  HHELEF
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the S 2 e fR K BI BR AN o BR FE AR F|
probability of outflow of economic benefits is HREZ A RE MR - TR FE Rk
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will ZRARSEURBELEFAEEREF
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non- HE2EBEEE  NTEREANAAE-

occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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B RS ¥R R B

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()  Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is recognised
on a trade date basis when the relevant
transactions are executed. Volume rebate to
customers is recognised as a reduction in
brokerage commission income when
payment of the rebate is probable and the
amounts can be estimated reliably. The fair
value of the consideration received or
receivable in respect of the initial trade
under customer loyalty programmes is
allocated between the award credits and
other components of the trade by reference
to their relative fair value. The award credits
are deferred and revenue is recognised only
when the Group fulfils its obligation to
provide free or discounted brokerage
services.

(iij) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(iii) Handling and settlement fee income

Handling and settlement fee income are
recognised when the related services are
rendered.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(p)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.

Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other
fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These
assets arising thereon are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

Related parties

() Aperson, or aclose member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parents.
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2

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q) Related parties (Continued)

(i) Anentity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

Q)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third party.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in ().

A person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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B 75 MY

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are securities
broking, margin financing and commodities and futures
broking.

Turnover represents the brokerage commission from
securities, commodities and futures broking and interest
income from margin and initial public offering (“IPQ")
financings as follows:

2

BEAETBEGE)

N 2BHE
REDBREEVBREMERZED
MEB L IRERDEERTAE
EEEBMEED B MFEERRME
HRHATAREESTREEARZY

RPBHEMS - EHEELL DM
SIRAEW  RIFLLFEDMARRAUL
ERBAREEMERBIEE - £ER
FUHE  EPRESEN  DHEEMK
RERGARBZTAREERRME
TEBEL - HENLIFEBER ZEED
MARFE LM KIS FHE - RIRTERA
s

BXRE
AEBEBEBRABHEL  FREEURE
i R A4 -

LEXBEKEES BmkPEKL &L
T FRBERBERAFAZEE(ERAME
EBEMGFEKRAIT

Brokerage commission Lrme 183,935,190 148,947,183
Interest income from margin financing FREREF S WA 43,967,010 33,019,410
Interest income from IPO financing BRAREERENSHA 804,959 6,235,296

228,707,159 188,201,889

BARHZEMEBERLT ¢« —_T——/ ——FFHk 99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MR

3  TURNOVER (Continued)

The Group’s customer base is diversified and no
customer had transactions which exceeded 10% of the

Group's revenue.

4 OTHER REVENUE

R (E)

AEBEFERER  MERSE -FPETYZ
R HHBBAEE W 10%

H 1 =

Interest income from ISR ONC =

— Authorised institutions — RS 7,660,724 1,121,926

— Others — EHi 6,477,894 3,711,646
14,138,618 4,833,572

Handling and settlement fees FEENEEEA 22,502,663 15,924,959

Sundry income I A 330,317 871,951
36,971,598 21,630,482

5 OTHER NET LOSS 5 HibEiEFEE

Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEERE (1,053,050) —

Error trades arising from securities, B EmAkHERS 2
commodities and futures dealings TR P (666,926) (962,970)
Net foreign exchange gain GINE U 55 R 960,175 136,704
(759,801) (826,266)
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6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6 BRBLAGRF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BFINEF B IR T &IE -

(@) Finance costs (@) BHERAR
Interest expense on AT S IER B
—  Bank loans for IPO financing — BRAHABEREZ
RITER 357,021 3,161,545
—  Other bank loans and overdrafts — ﬁﬁﬂfﬁ’?%?ﬂ&%ﬁi 7,818,316 4,846,491
—  Loans from related companies — REME B 4,365,758 —
12,541,095 8,008,036
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRAK
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EENEYER 62,552,331 50,278,989
Discretionary bonuses BYISEAT 8,309,853 12,930,697
Contributions to Mandatory HIES HR
Provident Fund 2,206,219 1,843,138
Equity-settled share-based payments B EEE AR B
E=Si i /O] 1,651,142 2,749,525
74,719,545 67,802,349
(c) oOther operating expenses (c) Hb&K=mMxX
Advertising and promotion expenses EEREERE 6,954,804 8,456,980
Auditors’ remuneration % EREM BN & 1,546,335 1,617,500
Commission expense to NSRS RIS
overseas brokers 4,523,084 2,294,939
Handling and settlement expenses FEERGEES 18,409,221 12,270,382
Information and communication B NE .ﬂﬁ'-ﬁsz
expenses 20,507,433 14,325,122
Legal and professional fees FENBEER 2,961,321 6,602,258
Operating lease payments O ViEFOINEN
— property rentals —WERS 25,988,199 18,941,503
Rates and building management fees EMREFERE 3,056,999 2,073,096
Miscellaneous expenses AR 9,772,211 11,070,317
93,719,607 77,652,097

BABHEMEBERAT ¢« —T——/ —=—FF®k% 101



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MR

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HEZEAWRBERZFAEHR
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement (a) mEzZEWZKRZPBIERE

of comprehensive income represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EIfiFiE — FEFEH

Provision for the year FNEE 11,922,321 7,044,329
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior years (EBZERHE) 1,114,851 (7,735)
13,037,172 7,036,594
Deferred tax EER E
Origination and reversal of temporary EREE IR K
differences (note 23(b)) B (K51 23() (322,508) 980,044
12,714,664 8,016,638

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
year ended 31 March 2012 is calculated at 16.5%
(2011: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

BE-ZT——F=A=+—-HILEEZ
&5 RIS LR R4 PO fd 5T ISR BRI
16.5% (—ZFE——4F : 16.5%) 515 -
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7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 SZEZEWERZFAEHR(EZ)
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) RERABEGFE 2B EREES
and accounting profit at applicable tax AR
rates:

Profit before taxation B A5 AT 4 ) 73,350,530 48,634,706
Notional tax on profit before taxation, #165% (ZZF——%F : 16.5%)

calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) HECZBRBAENZETIE 12,102,838 8,024,726
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DA RS 2 BB 2 466,786 12,885
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue ARG 2 B2 (1,418,019) (177,540)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RERRBARIEBEZ

not recognised B2 303,814 97,927
Under/(over)-provision in respect of BAFERETRS

prior years (EBEERHE) 1,114,851 (7,735)
Others Hib 144,394 66,775
Actual tax expense ERHIERY 12,714,664 8,016,638
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8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8 EEMe
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BIEES QTR E 161 IEHE Y EE# 40
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as T
follows:

2012
“E-C-F

Equity-settled
Salaries, share-based
allowances Contributions payments

and benefits to Mandatory Payment (Note)

Directors’ inkind  Discretionary Provident inlieu EREEURSR
fees ¥4 28 honuses Fund of notice AEWZFHE
EsHe RENER gk BESH RENE (Hz#)

Yip Mow Lum EEM - 1,540,000 - 12,000 - - 1,552,000
Chan Kai Fung R - 1,440,000 201,951 12,000 - 166,740 1,820,691
Kwok Sze Chi DEA — 1,320,000 185,122 12,000 - 166,740 1,683,862
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson BRAH - 660,000 108,893 12,000 - 33,348 814,241
Yu Yun Kong REA 150,507 - - - - 55,524 206,031
Szeto Wai Sun AfERERT 129,000 - - - - 55,524 184,524
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph b il 107,505 - - - - 55,524 163,029
Total @t 387,012 4,960,000 495,966 48,000 - 533,400 6,424,378

Equity-settled
Salaries, Share-based
allowances Contributions payments

and benefits to Mandatory Payment (Note)
Directors' Discretionary Provident in ligu
fees ] Fund of notice

Yip Mow Lum ES T — 818,065 - 12,000 — — 830,065
Chan Kai Fung BRI — 1,058,065 588,915 12,000 — 299,708 1,958,683
Kwok Sze Chi iy — 1,220,000 599,115 12,000 — 299,708 2,130,823
Chan Wing Shing, Wilson Bk - 560,000 317,085 12,000 — 59,942 949,027
Hui Wah Chiu (resigned on HEL(W-T-TF

30 October 2010) TA=+AET) — 699,565 1,013,242 9,000 1,200,000 — 2,921,807
Yu Yun Kong KEA 84,304 — — — — 99,803 184,107
Szeto Wai Sun Alfes AR 72,258 — — — — 99,803 172,061
Ling Kwok Fai, Joseph b il 60,220 — — — — 99,803 160,023
Total it 216,782 4,355,695 2,518,357 57,000 1,200,000 958,767 9,306,601
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Except for the payment in lieu of notice of $1,200,000
paid to Hui Wah Chiu during the year ended 31 March
2011, no director received any emoluments from the
Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or
compensation for loss of office and, no director waived
or has agreed to waive any emoluments.

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note
2(K)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in
the directors’ report and note 25.

INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2011: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other two (2011: two) individuals are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

EEME (&)
BREBEE—_T——F=—A=t—BLFEXN
FAAE S 2 RBAS1,200,0007T50 - HEEE
EZEASBEURBEMME - (EAINBHBEFRA
SEZRSABERAE TEEERELRE
MEEABE -

fifed - % EFRERBEAARBRESBETES
Bz EEE 2SBEREZEEDR
12z B R 2(K)(117) P 80 7S 5% ) A R DA B fn A T
ZHERZXSHZ G BRAE -

ZEBYEMN BERHZEREZIBHERR
BE)ZHBEREESWRE [BRETS) —
B sE 25 W FE -

REFMAL

hEEaRTMATHBEE=4(ZF——4%:
ZRIEE REZHMENMTME - 8T
ME(ZE——F :WMEB) AT 2SS BTN
T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REDER 3,077,500 2,694,782
Discretionary bonuses FIBTEAL 383,381 1,100,299
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund ~ s&i& & 5k 12,000 17,739
Payment in lieu of notice KRB — 1,200,000
Equity-settled share-based payments B EE ARG BEM 2 B 206,703 299,708

3,679,584 5,312,528
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9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 BEHFMAL(E)

(Continued)

The emoluments of the two (2011: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

Nil to $1,000,000

$2,000,001 to $2,500,000
$2,500,001 to $3,000,000
$3,000,001 to $3,500,000

ZMH(ZE——F  MB)ESFMA LM
ENFATEE :

Numbers of individuals

A
2012 2011
—E——F —ET——F
£ % 1,000,000 7T 1 —
2,000,001 7T & 2,500,000 7T = 1
2,500,001 7T & 3,000,000 7T 1 —
3,000,001 7T & 3,500,000 7T — 1

Except for the payment in lieu of notice of $1,200,000
paid to an individual for the year ended 31 March 2011,
no emoluments have been paid to these individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial year.

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of $78,781
(2011: $453,903) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
$60,635,866 (2011: $40,618,068), and the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year
ended 31 March 2012 of 679,946,372 (2011:
606,997,458).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 of
$60,635,866 and the weighted average number of shares
in issue and the effect of deemed issue of shares under
the Company’s share option scheme (note 25) during
the year ended 31 March 2012 of 681,823,449. For the
year ended 31 March 2011, as the average market share
price of the ordinary shares during the year was lower
than the exercise price of the outstanding share options,
the diluted earnings per share was equal to the basic
earnings per share.

10

11

BRBE-T——F=A=1+—HILFEXM
F—RALZRBAE1,200,0007T5M - BEF
B 2 AR A% A £ SR B S E AN
BASEEN AR 2 RS HIEABBAEE

A1 B R R SR PEAG B A

ARAFIEZBRRELGERZNBEE—2AHK
78,781 L2 EE (=& —— 4 : 453,903 7L ) -
IHEBE AR AT ST EHEREIE -

BRAER

BREABNNREE —T——F=A=+—
B 1EF AR )4 5 B 1A 5 51 60,635,866
TT(ZZ——4F :40,6180687TC) k& = - &
——F=ZA=1+—HIFEEETRGMEF
B 81679,946,372 1% ( —ZT ——4F : 606,997,458
BROFTE -

RSB IREE T —F=A=1+—
BIEFEz2ARNA R REENRF
60,635,866 T AR B E—_T——F=A=+—
H I FE B BT O N8R AREIRIBA
AR BT BB TR, (M sE25) 2 28 2
681,823 449K st H - HE T ——F = A
—+T—HLEFE BRFALBRFHME
EREARITEEREZITHE  WEREER
FEFGRERZFESE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
35 o B =

12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(a)

Securities broking — provision of broking services
in securities traded in Hong Kong and selected
overseas markets, and margin financing services
to those broking clients.

commodities and futures broking — provision of
broking services in commodities and futures
contracts traded in Hong Kong and selected
overseas markets.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’'s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of taxation
recoverable and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the activities of the individual
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
earnings before finance costs and taxes (“EBIT").
To arrive at EBIT, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as corporate
administration costs.

BABZEMEBERDT

7 FIB*E =1

REBIREBERNE D 2 DHEREER - K
SEZEARERNELRRBAFEALAEESS
TREEAEBAIL2HRER —BOIX2FAT
IR 0 & o BLE S GHEE D BRAER T
SRR E 7 &P o

tl

_Ej—\\%

— BFEL — RENRBEMEEEINTS

BEEZBHRLRERAKL LT PIRM
FRBE RS -

— BAnLkPEEL —RERBENRETE

SIS EBE EmAES D2 KRR
ﬁ% o

(@ 2#x&E BEKRARE

RAEDHARAERNEDEHEOEE
R ARERSTHEBASKRATE
EERZAMEDHMEERE BEER
afE:

DHEEREMABBREERARYE
B MR EIR R A AR E ER
She DR BEREMERND ARG
RN M EA X

MRS DI E AR 2 EEE %%M
TR AR R FBIE A 2 BFI([EBIT]) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 DEHE (E)

s

(b) Segment information (b) ZEHFHEF

2012
—_E—_F
Commodities

and futures

Securities broking
broking mmk

Revenue from KEIINARPE N -
external customers:

— Brokerage commission — & Ee 119,464,277 64,470,913 183,935,190
— Interest income from —HHERE

margin financing FLEHA 43,967,010 — 43,967,010
— Interest income from —BARFABE

IPO financing A& F 2 A 804,959 — 804,959
Consolidated turnover IRE X 164,236,246 64,470,913 228,707,159
Handling and settlementfees FEENEEER 22,482,493 20,170 22,502,663
Reportable segment revenue  a]#f& B 186,718,739 64,491,083 251,209,822

Reportable segment profit RS R

(EBIT) (EBIT) 39,627,130 49,182,647 88,809,777
Depreciation for the year FRIE (10,373,721) (12,089)  (10,385,810)
Other interest income E AR SHA 13,100,832 1,036,782 14,137,614
Finance costs B TSR ZR (12,541,095) — (12,541,095)
Additions to non-current FRARNEZ

segment assets during EREDEEE

the year 13,987,141 — 13,987,141
Reportable segment assets AR E D ERE E 1,376,915,135 210,302,736 1,587,217,871
Reportable segment liabilities  AJsk &9 EE (990,107,029) (104,131,143) (1,094,238,172)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)

D E®E (E)

o EER(E)

Securities
broking

2011
—E——4F
commodities

and futures
broking
[SEED
HERL

Revenue from KEINARP 2z -

external customers
— Brokerage commission — & Ee 111,210,450 37,736,733 148,947,183
— Interest income from —HERE

margin financing FLEMA 33,019,410 — 33,019,410
— Interest income from —BARFABE
IPO financing BbE ) B A 6,235,296 — 6,235,296

Consolidated turnover A EHER 150,465,156 37,736,733 188,201,889
Handling and settlementfees FEENEEER 15,924,959 — 15,924,959
Reportable segment revenue a5 B 166,390,115 37,736,733 204,126,848
Reportable segment profit Al o 500 A

(EBIT) (EBIT) 29,008,005 28,225,804 57,233,809
Depreciation for the year FRITE (6,848,437) (17,152) (6,865,589)
Other interest income ot A 2N 4,773,593 59,979 4,833,572
Finance costs B R AR AR (8,007,898) (138) (8,008,036)
Additions to non-current FRARNEZ

segment assets during ERE D EEE

the year 22,263,564 6,500 22,270,064
Reportable segment assets AIRE D EEE 1,552,541,809 194,923,040  1,747,464,849
Reportable segment liabilities A #hE DR E (1,186,660,201) (123,899,390)  (1,310,559,591)

BIBSEMEEBARAE ¢« —T——/ ——_FFW
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B 75 MY

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 HE/E(E)
(c) Reconciliation of reportable segment (c) AREDHEN BEEREEBZY
profit, assets and liabilities BR

Profit A

Reportable segment profit (EBIT) A] #4590 505 A (EBIT) 88,809,777 57,233,809
Finance costs B 7 AR (12,541,095) (8,008,036)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ARFE (2,918,152) (591,067)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRTBIAT ST 73,350,530 48,634,706
Assets BE

Reportable segment assets A ERE D EPEE 1,587,217,871 1,747 ,464,849
Elimination of inter-segment receivable 15855 &6 [ E W sk B (6,137,151) (3,856,365)
Taxation recoverable AL B FE IR = 1,818,947
Unallocated corporate assets AP AREE 9,098,307 9,538,338
Consolidated total assets REEEMRE 1,590,179,027  1,754,965,769
Liabilities afE

Reportable segment liabilities ASmESHEaE (1,094,238,172) (1,310,559,591)
Elimination of inter-segment payable 859 SR FE S FR 0B 1,881,968 40,000,000
Current taxation BIHARR 18 (3,763,141) (2,154,300)
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHIAAE (192,551) (515,059)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEARAEE (68,666) (40,157,686)
Consolidated total liabilities e BEReE (1,096,380,562) (1,313,386,636)

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011/12
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B 75 MY

13 FIXED ASSETS 13 BEEEE

Leasehold Motor office Furniture Computers
improvements vehicles equipment  and fixtures and software

& / BAERE BRARRE  EEREA
$ $

Cost; %

At 1 April 2010 RZE-TENA—A 7,808,961 175,000 3,316,195 3,408,955 4,680,822 19,389,933
Additions NG 7,983,749 403,700 7,116,561 3,473,400 4,637,865 23,615,275
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%E=fA=1+—H 15,792,710 578,700 10,432,756 6,882,355 9,318,687 43,005,208
At 1 April 2011 RZE——&FNA—-A 15,792,710 578,700 10,432,756 6,382,355 9,318,687 43,005,208
Additions NE 9,305,851 — 1,533,334 680,332 2,691,160 14,210,677
Disposals HE (681,641) (400,000) — (263,571) (223,535) (1,568,747)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=A=1+—-H 24,416,920 178,700 11,966,090 7299116 11,786,312 55,647,138
Accumulated depreciation: 2BIE

At 1 April 2010 RZZE-FFN[—H 5,607,382 2917 2,254,063 2,296,019 2,038,351 12,198,732
Charge for the year FREY 3,158,426 55,315 1,364,488 804,524 1,526,164 6,908 917
At 31 March 2011 RZB——%5=fA=1+—H 8,765,808 58,232 3,618,551 3,100,543 3,564,515 19,107,649
At April 2011 RZE——FNA—A 8,765,808 58,232 3,618,551 3,100,543 3,564,515 19,107,649
Charge for the year FREY 5,336,832 82,417 1,906,244 1,072,190 2,190,49% 10,588,179
Written back on disposals R ERERD (133,003) (66,670) — (30,857) (15,167) (245,697)
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—#=R=+—H 13,969,637 73979 5,524,795 4,141,876 5,739,844 29,450,131
Net book value: FEFE:

At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=A=1—-H 10,447,283 104,721 6,441,295 3,157,240 6,046,468 26,197,007
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%5=ZA=1+—H 7,026,902 520,468 6,814,205 3,781,812 5,754,172 23,897,559
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

14 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 14 HikERBEE

Statutory deposits with exchanges RGRBEFZETRS
and clearing houses 8,490,032 21,868,923
15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 15 FEUWERFR

Accounts receivable from FEM AR R R B

— Cash clients Y= 110,688,229
— Margin clients — HREPE 893,571,157
— Clearing houses —EHFT 127,318,844
— Brokers and dealers — KRR 15,345,484
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE R (964,384)

62,895,693
997,367,347
266,424,169

17,949,386

1,145,959,330

1,344,636,595
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)
(@) Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable from
cash clients as of the end of the reporting period is
as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

15 FEWERH(E)

AR 4T

R &Rz YR & F P RFKERR D
T

Current BN EH 38,637,877 35,656,590
Less than 1 month past due BE LR 1R A 59,540,934 17,229,566
1to 3 months past due wmHE1Z=3M@A 6,738,631 6,073,729
More than 3 months past due B HAREB 3R A 5,770,787 3,935,808
Amounts past due BHS R 72,050,352 27,239,103

110,688,229 62,895,693

Accounts receivable from cash clients relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Based on past
experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
considered fully recoverable.

Margin loans due from margin clients are current
and repayable on demand. Margin clients are
required to pledge securities collateral to the
Group in order to obtain credit facilities for
securities trading. The amount of credit facilities
granted to them is determined by the discounted
value of securities accepted by the Group. At 31
March 2012, the total market value of securities
pledged as collateral in respect of the loans to
margin clients was approximately $2,941,959,839
(2011: $3,573,187,167).

FEUCR B P RIOP K% 2T I &R
Rz EF - REBELR  E2E
MEBARZSERELRERE R
ARGEEERYESARH L EHEH
WA A =B E -

BRAFREFZFRER AR R AR
ERER - FREPAMASEEKRE
HEFR URBEFRZEREER
B -BRTREZEEMESHRASH
B EARUBREEEBE R_F—=
FZA=1+—H HRATREFPEREXR
EHERABHERERG e TEAEOR
2,9419598397t( = & — — F:
3,573,187,167 7T) °
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15 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

114

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (Continued)

Accounts receivable from clearing houses, brokers
and dealers are current. These represent (1)
pending trades arising from the business of dealing
in securities, which are normally due within a few
days after the trade date and (2) margin deposits
arising from the business of dealing in futures
contracts.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set
out in note 27(a).

Impairment of margin clients and
brokers and dealers receivables

Impairment losses in respect of margin clients and
brokers and dealers receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in
which case the impairment loss is written off
against margin clients and brokers and dealers
receivables directly (see note 2(f)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year is as follows:

15 EWERR(E)

(a)

(b)

BRI DA (48)

FEWAEEFT - BERRZEZRK B
H - BRERAKANEEIZHEHZHF

BEEER S —BRXZBEHAR
A RQEBEMEANEBZARR
BT e

AEBEERRZE - THBEHNME
27(a) °

BUFREFURELERXZEX
THRE

RFREPURKLE X FREAFIAZ
MERBBABERCER  EASERE
AT B RIR A AT BEME R E RSN - AU
BRAT  BEBEERERKFREP
VAR 48 42 B 22 55 T8 sk TR 3 ( R BfS = 2(1)
(i) °

REEBREZFREBMT

At 1 April RrEA—AH = —
Impairment loss recognised EERBERE 964,384 —
At 31 March W=A=+—H 964,384 —

At 31 March 2012, receivables from margin clients
and brokers and dealers of $964,384 (2011: $Nil)
were determined to be impaired. The impaired
receivables related to margin clients and a broker
that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

R-ZE——F=ZA=+—H " kAHFE
EPURKLERR 55 2 EBKKIE
964,384 TL(ZF——%F : TIL)EHRA
EURME o BB FE WK IR B AT B 3R
HOFREFPUAR—RELHER &
1 [Z 78 HA{E AT UK 21 30 0 FE LK ©
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B 75 MY

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16
PREPAYMENTS

17

HttEWRE - #ERANKIER

Rental and utility deposits HERKEBES 8,370,302 7,640,331
Prepayments TEfTFRIE 2,451,894 2,568,058
Other receivables HAth pE IR 1,657,473 2,677,099

12,479,669 12,885,488

Included in the above balances are amounts of
$9,478,094 and $7,677,359 as at 31 March 2012 and
2011 respectively which are expected to be recovered in
more than one year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

R-B——FR-_T——F=ZA=+—8 &
A F il & 88 2 SRIE 9 Rl 59,478,094 7T K
7,677,359 TLTE BRI — FE 12 U [E] o

ReRASEEY
(@) RERBREE/EYEE:

The Group The Company
REE AAF

2012
—E—_F

2011 2012 2011
—T——F —E-C-F —T——F

$
T

Deposits with banks RITER 249,483,240 265,868,809 17,952 —
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERE 147,569,749 83,989,448 3,041,007 5,912,091
397,052,989 349,858,257 3,058,959 5,912,091
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a)
(Continued)

17 ReRBEEEW(E)
ReRBRESEEYWEE - (&)

The Group maintains segregated accounts with
authorised institutions to hold client money in the
normal course of business.

Z'K;EKEI \wu—.M}%T% Eﬁiﬁﬁ}g b_/\
BEBBEPHRBEREFPES -

At 31 March 2012, client monies maintained in
segregated accounts not otherwise dealt with in
the financial statements amounted to

R-E——F=A=+—8" ﬁﬁ%é
VEEFAVENEREREMI D
ZEEESELAE1744,633782T (= F

$1,744,633,782 (2011 $1,114,430,601). ——%F : 1,114,430,601 7T) °
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation (b) BFBANERERLEEIEHE,(FFA)
to cash generated from/(used in) He& 28k

operations:

Profit before taxation R 75 A& 73,350,530 48,634,706
Adjustments for: AT SIBEHFAE
Depreciation e 10,588,179 6,908,917
Finance costs B T5 RS 12,541,095 8,008,036
Interest income (excluding interest FEWA (TEIEFRRE
income from margin and RERAABEREZ
IPO financings) FEWA) (14,138,618) (4,833,572)
Loss on disposals of fixed assets HEBTFEEZBAE 1,053,050 —
Equity-settled share-based payments EREE ARG A
Hp >~ 218 1,651,142 2,749,525
Changes in working capital: BEE2E)
Decrease/(increase) in HittIEms&E
other non-current assets (38 n) 13,378,891 (17,286,316)
Decrease/(increase) in FEM AR TR A
accounts receivable () 198,677,265 (581,503,130)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables,  Efth fEUFIAE ~ 24 &
deposits and prepayments B FIER A (3G ) 405,819 (3,464,847)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable  FERTERZR GELA) /&40 (6,228,904) 286,870,246
(Decrease)/increase in accrued expenses  JEEH ISz K H b JE T 28
and other payables (R A),/#m (2,063,503) 4,544,918
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4 & 2% 15/ (FrA) RS 289,214,946 (249,371,517)
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MR MR

18 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

18

RMBARZRE

The Company
PN
2012

—E-——F

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG - KNAE 780 780
Capital contribution FE 4,088,970 2,749,525
4,089,750 2,750,305

Capital contribution represents the fair value of share
options granted to the employees of a subsidiary of the
Company in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2(k)(ii).

(@) At 31 March 2012, the Company had direct or
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all
of which are private companies, particulars of
which are set out below:

Place and

date of
incorporation
Az 2R A A

Name of company

DAER

Issued and
fully paid-up
capital

ERTRBZRE

Bright Smart Investment British Virgin US$100 at US$1
Holdings Limited Islands (BVI)/ per share
BT REERER AR 220ctober 2009 100%7T © BRAME
RBRIHEE E

((EBRZ#HE])/

ZETNE

+A=+=RH
Bright Smart Securities Hong Kong/ HK$326,000,000 at
International (H.K.) Limited 10 August 1998 HK$1 per share

BABFER (BE)BRRR B/ -ANNF
NATH

BIBSEMEEBARAE ¢« —T——/ ——_FFW

326,000,000 % 7T -

BREE1VET

S B RRIR MR 200G T B & SRR T AR
A2 U B BB A T 48 -

RZTE-—Z—F=A=+—R0  Az2apr
ATHBLR R B R FEELR %
SMBRATER/LARE - FHBEWT

(@

Attributable
equity interest Principal activities
P R AR 25 TEXK
Direct Indlirect
BZ I3
100% —  Investment holding
REER
— 100%  Securities broking and
margin financing
BFEERARRE

117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

18

118

Name of company

NAER

Bright Smart Futures
& Commodities Co., Ltd
BTHEREmBRAA

Bright Smart Asset
Management Limited
BT EEERER AR

Merit Act Limited
EEBRAT

Huge Dynasty Limited
REERAA

Ideal Magic Limited
HEBR T

Glow Dragon Limited
EEARAF

Victor Tone Limited
ERERAF

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(@) (continued)

Place and
date of
incorporation

LA L i B R B 5

Hong Kong/

14 November 1995
BB/ —NWNEF
+—A+mA

Hong Kong/

18 August 2011
BE/ T4
AV RWIN=

Hong Kong/

3 November 2009
&8/ —ETNE
+—HA=H

Hong Kong/

13 January 2010
BB/ —5-%F
—A+=H

Hong Kong/

13 January 2010
R/ —T-TF
—RA+=H

Hong Kong/

21 January 2010
Bt/ -F-TF
—AZt-A

Hong Kong/

21 January 2010
BR/—FEF
—R=t-H8

18 RMBRARZKRE(E)

Issued and

fully paid-up
capital
ERTRAZRA

HK$44,000,000 at
HK$1 per share
44,000,000 7T *
SREEET

HK$5,000,000 at
HK$1 per share

5,000,000 7T

SREE BT

HK$1 at

HK$1 per share
187 BREE
15871

HK$1 at

HK$1 per share
187 BREE
18T

HK$1 at

HK$1 per share
18T BREE
18T

HK$1 at

HK$1 per share
1871 BREE
18T

HK$1 at

HK$1 per share
1871 BREE
1%

(@ (#&)
Attributable
equity interest
FEfh B A R 25
Direct Indirect
B#E B
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
— 100%
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Commodities and futures
broking
EmRkELL

Inactive
Thmex

Administrative services
1THURT

Administrative services
1TBUR

Administrative services
1TBUR

Administrative services
TR

Administrative services
1THUIRT
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18

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(Continued)

Place and

date of
incorporation
MR A

Name of company

NAER

18 RMBRARZKRE(E)

Issued and
fully paid-up
capital

ERTRARRE

Everlasting Source Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 at
BYERAT 8 December 2010 HK$1 per share
BB/ —T-5F 1571 BREE
+=ANR 1T
Bright Smart Investment Hong Kong/ HK$1 at
Consultancy (China) 9 November 2010 HK$1 per share
Company Limited BB/ _E-BE 19870 SREME
B RE AR (PE) T—ANA 1T
BRAR

2 EBHACRI)ERAR People’s Republic HK$1,000,000
(Note) (Hizt) of China/ 1,000,000 7T

10 January 2011

HEE AR KRB

—T—%—-RA+H

Note: It is registered as a wholly foreign-owned
enterprise under the laws of the People’s Republic
of China.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2012 and 2011, the amounts due
from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand, except for the amount
due from a subsidiary of $40,000,000 as at 31
March 2011 was unsecured, repayable on demand
and bore interest at HIBOR+ 1.5% per annum. The
carrying amount approximates to its fair value as
at the reporting date.

BIBSEMEEBARAE ¢« —T——/ ——_FFW

(a)

(b)

()
Attributable
equity interest Principal activities
FEfh B A R 25 FTEER
Direct Indirect
B#E B
— 100%  Administrative services
TTHR®
— 100%  Investment holding
REER
— 100%  Inactive
Tmes

MIEE - s R B TR IBEH EARAMBEDE R M
RRSINERELE -

W (1) B A TRRIE
BR-_ZTE——F=ZA=+—BAH
40,000,000 7T, 2 i Wy — I B B8 A R k78
BEEIR - AR EREERIZEBRT
FIZEFSMI5%FRE BN BT
——FRZFE——F=A=+—H &
W/ (H)MBARREBEHAEER &
BRARERER - REERENRE
HE Z AFEBE °
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19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 19 ENERF

The Group
rEER
2012

—E-——F

Accounts payable FERTRRER

— Cash clients —HeEP 66,866,180 182,796,758

— Margin clients —HFREP 161,168,878 270,682,039

— Clearing houses —EEFR 241,702,113 22,487,278
469,737,171 475,966,075

All of the accounts payable are aged and due within one FMEENERZESRS—BARER—EAA

month or on demand. sk B R Bk EE -

20 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER 20 FEctBX R HEMtAEARKIE
PAYABLES

The Group

ZN
2012

—E—_—F

Commission rebate payable FEHA S B 4,139,055 5,575,743
Accrued bonuses FERTIEAT 3,018,516 3,951,845

Stamp duty, trading levy and trading fee JERSEDIER - RHHBRZSE
payables 3,182,719 3,546,688
Other payables H A B FR 7,347,409 6,676,926
17,687,699 19,751,202
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MR MR

20 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER
PAYABLES (Continued)

Other payables

H At FE A 5008

FERT RIS R At B :RIE ()

The Company
KAF]
2012

—E—_F

17,325 —

All accrued expenses and other payables are expected
to be settled or recognised as income within one year.

21 BANK LOANS

—E——F

Bank loans RITER 425,000,000

TEHAPT A FEAH R S AN IR R —F A
EERFERSWA

RITER

The Group The Company
TEH AT

2012 2011
—B--F ZT——F

815,000,000 = 40,000,000

All the bank loans are repayable within one year and
classified as current liabilities. The carrying amounts of
the bank borrowings approximate their fair value.

The bank loans as at 31 March 2012 are interest-bearing
at 2.05% (2011: 1.09%) per annum. Securities collateral
deposited by the Group’s margin clients was re-pledged
to banks to secure these loan facilities. The fair value of
the collateral re-pledged to banks as at 31 March 2012
amounted to $916,921,500 (2011: $1,257,394,000). Such
banking facilities amounted to $2,073,000,000 (2011:
$1,266,000,000) and were utilised to the extent of
$425,000,000 (2011: $775,000,000).

FIERITERBER —FREERDBER/RD A
B RITEEZREEREAFERS -

RZZE—ZF=/F=+—HZRITEFIREF
F205% (=T ——5F :1.09%) 5B - AEE
CHEREFPFEZHERLBAEARTRT
LS EBERRE - R_FE—=-F=A4
=t+—B BEATROZERRAFESHR
#916,921,500 7T (=& —— 4 : 1,257,394,000
7T)  BEARITEVE & 75 2,073,000,000 7T (=
T — — £ :1,266,0000007C ) B B A
425,000,0007T (== ——4 : 775,000,0007T) °
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22

23

122

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS —
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated
statement of financial position
represents:

22

23

BERKERN — EEARERNKEE

AEERBEEBRGIE LB BNEDIRRE
BB REBIROINFIEAERER RAE TR ER
BARKET RIS 2 B B RIGRHIMEAEEET
2 (MaE2sta)) - RESFIRERMHNR
KEtdl BBUEEABRE - RIFBBE S
g RENHEERGRREBHBEAZS%
mEEIVEL K 1S AEREYA 20,000 7T
B ER o R EI KB R

REUBMRRRZAER

(@) HEMBRRKRZANBHIAE :

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FREBNESTEE
for the year 11,922,321 7,044,329
Provisional Profits Tax paid BT E AR5 (8,159,180) (6,708,976)
3,763,141 335,353
Representing: e
Taxation recoverable AT EI IR = (1,818,947)
Current taxation BIEAT I8 3,763,141 2,154,300
3,763,141 335,353
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 FREUBRRERZAEH (F)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax liabilities represents: (b) EZEFIFBEEE
The components of deferred tax liabilities REEVBEMRARERCELERIBEEE
recognised in the consolidated statement of EREBY REFERNEEBNT -

financial position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

Depreciation
allowance

in excess of

Accrued the related

bonuses depreciation
BB TE
EstiEdl  ZinERE

Deferred tax liabilities/ BT REEL >
(assets) arising from: JEFEFiE

afE (BE):
At 1 April 2010 RZE—FF
MmA—A 147,812 (707,757) 94,960 (464,985)
(Credited)/charged to WEE GEA) S
profit or loss (note 7(a)) 0Bk (K17t 7(a) (16,500) 55,703 940,841 980,044
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%F
=A=+—8 131,312 (652,054) 1,035,801 515,059
At 1 April 2011 RZE——%F
mA—A 131,312 (652,054) 1,035,801 515,059
(Credited)/charged to w8z Gt A,/
profit or loss (note 7(a)) 0Bk (K177 7(a) (16,500) 153,999 (460,007) (322,508)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F
=A=+—H 114,812 (498,055) 575,794 192,551
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a)

X HERKRE
(@) BBEARBI LB

REE A RS S AKE D HYEIR
BB ZERANGARZEHR - AR
7] 2 fE 4 2 AR A BD 0 IR AR 4R 2 B A7) K B

24
Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

124

consolidated statement of changes in equity. KRE 2 BB FBEHINNT -
Details of the changes in the Company's individual
components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:
AT

The Company

Share
capital

Bx

Share
premium

Ry
$

T

Share option
reserve

BRERR
$

(Accumulated
losses)/
Retained
profits

(Rt E#R)/

At 1 April 2010 RZE-ZFNA-A 8 — — (29,055) (29,047)
Issue of shares pursuant to REBR%TRY

reorganisation 149,999,992 — — — 149,999,992
Issuie of new shares in Initial BRRREERE RN

Public Offering 53,904,600 233,574,602 — — 287,479,202
Share issuance costs BRI A — (41,319,094) - — (41,319,094)
(Loss) and total comprehensive  FR () R2 ENEESE

income for the year — — — (453,903) (453,903)
Equity-settled share-based EREE R AR

transactions X5 — — 2,749,525 — 2,749,525
At 31 March 2011 WZE——%=F=+—-H  203904,600 192,255,508 2,749,525 (482,958) 398,426,675
AL1 April 2011 R-F-—4mA-A 03904600 192255508 27495 (482958) 39842675
Dividend paid during the year ENRATRE —  (12,234276) - —  (12234.276)
Shares issued under share option  BEARIE=T 2198 N 2 %47/ 1D

scheme 942,000 1,886,150 (661,550) — 2,166,600
Profitand total comprehensive  EREFIR2E LS

income for the year — — — 12,161,219 12,161,219
Equity-settled share-based ERGEN RN BER

transactions IR5 — — 1,339,445 — 1,339,445
At 31 March 2012 RZE-—F=f=+—H 204,846,600 181,907,382 3,427,420 11,678,261 401,859,663
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24
(Continued)

(b) Dividends

B ERKRE(E)

(b) BE
HAFEDERBREMT

Dividends declared in respect of the current year
are as follows:

Final dividend proposed after the end WE ARG EERARSE
of the reporting period of 1.8 cents BRI AR 1.810
per ordinary share (2011: 1.8 cents (Z=—%F 8k
per ordinary share) A% 1.8 1)

12,290,796 12,234,276

The final dividend proposed after the end of the MERREEZRARS L EARHRED

reporting period has not been recognised as a RERBALE -
liability at the end of the reporting period.

(c) Share capital () B=&
Authorised and issued share capital EEREBRITRAE

2012 2011
—F--F —F—F
No. of No. of
shares shares
BEE

Nominal
value

Nominal
value

ROEE H{E

Authorised EE
At 1 April RMA—H 2,000,000,000 600,000,000 50,000 390,000
Share adjustment (note(}) W10 2 (BizE () — — 1,250,000 —
Ordinary shares created FREH 2 ERR
during the vear (note () (Hiz ) — — 1,998,700,000 599,610,000
At 31st March R=A=+—H 2,000,000,000 600,000,000 2,000,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
At 1st April RIEA—H 679,682,000 203,904,600 1 8
Share adjustment (note (i)~ ARIASHEE (B2 () — — 25 -
Shares issued pursuant e SET o)
to reorganisation (note (i) (BEE() — — 499,999,974 149,999,992
Shares issued through BRBRANFREE
initial public offering BITRM
(note (i) (i) — — 179,682,000 53,904,600
Shares issued under BB BB
share option scheme &t (B2 (i)
(note (i) 3,140,000 942,000 — —
At 31st March R=A=1+—H 682,822,000 204,846,600 679,682,000 203,904,600
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time

and a

re entitled to one vote per share at meetings

of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with r

(i)

126

egard to the company's residual assets.

Issue of shares pursuant to
reorganisation

The Company was incorporated on 4 August
2009 with an authorised share capital of
US$50,000 divided into 50,000 ordinary
shares of US$1 each. The Company issued
one ordinary share for a total consideration
of US$1 (equivalent to HK$7.8) on 4 August
2009. Pursuant to the resolutions of the sole
shareholder of the Company passed on 8
April 2010, the denomination of the currency
in the authorised share capital of the
Company was changed from U.S. dollars to
Hong Kong dollars at the rate of HK$7.8 per
US$1 and upon such change of currency
denomination becoming effective, each
ordinary share of par value HK$7.8 each was
subdivided into 78 ordinary shares of par
value HK$0.1 each. Immediately following
the change of currency denomination, the
authorised share capital of the Company
became HK$390,000 divided into 3,900,000
ordinary shares of par value HK$0.1 each.

24 BXR - HERKRE(E)

(c)

A (45)
BERBRITRAE ()

BABRFEABRRBRITRE IR ZKE
EEERARRAARERERBMNER—
RoRARABRTEEMS - MAEER
B ZEBRFHAL -

(i)

RIEEARTRG

AARRZZETAFNAEA ZM
AL VEERRZAN A50,000% 7T -
A&50,000 KB EEI1E T LR
e RZZZTAFNANA + AR
RIBETIR SRR ARER/
EILEER78EIL) - REARD
BlZMEE—RER - E—TFM AN
HiliR 2 R ER - ARFDEERAR
ZETEEEBEIRISETRIET
ZIERBETERBET  MNRERH
FHEERERAERE - BIREETS
BT EBRAIFA BT8R F K
EE0IB T s LMk - ERE Lt
FHEEMERE  AARZEER
7K /390,000 7T+ % £ 3,900,000
REREEN BT L@ -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

Issue of shares pursuant to
reorganisation (Continued)

Pursuant to the resolutions of the sole
shareholder of the Company passed on 29
June 2010, every three issued and unissued
shares of par value HK$0.1 each in the then
share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one ordinary share of par
value $0.3 each. Immediately following such
consolidation, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from
HK$390,000 to HK$600,000,000 by the
creation of 1,998,700,000 new ordinary
shares of par value HK$0.3 each.

On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of Bright Smart
Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd, Bright
Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited
and Merit Act Limited through Bright Smart
Investment Holdings Limited from their
respective shareholders (“the Vendors”). The
Company allotted and issued, credited as
fully paid, an aggregate of 499,999,974
shares of par value HK$0.3 each totalling
HK$149,999,992, to the Controlling
Shareholders at the directions of the Vendors
as consideration for their acquisition.
Thereafter, the Company became the
holding company of the companies
comprising the Group.

BABHERMEEERAT ¢« —T——/ —_FFH

24 BXR - HERKRE(E)

(c)

[ ENED

(i)

RIFEAZITRG ()

REBARRZE-RRR —_E—F
FRAZTNABRRBIBZIRERE - K
REERZEAPE = REREE
0VBTTZEEITRAREITHRNE
HR—BREREEIBETZER
B o EBE B A GHR - ARRIZIE
TERR AR B 37 815 3% 1,998,700,000 A%
FREBEOIBTZMEEKR - M
390,000/ 7T 1% % 600,000,000/ 7T ©

R-ZZE-ZFRA-_tTHIEB  &A2Q
B BRET REERAR A TR E
THEREARBRAR - BT &S
R(BEB)BRRALEEERA
AZABRR(ES DWBEZER
Az 2R BTEA - MARAE
RE Ty 2 1R R AR A SR AL 3 K 3%
716 #£499,999,974 % B IR E1E0.3
7 7T (& $£149,999,992 7% 7T ) A Bk
SIS R R ERBERE - 2
% ARBR/AKEETRARLZ

ERRT -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

128

(Continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Issue of new shares in Initial Public
Offering

On 25 August 2010, the Company was
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange
following the completion of its initial public
offering of 166,800,000 shares with a par
value of HK$0.3 each, at a price of HK$1.60
per share to the investors. On 17 September
2010, a further 12,882,000 shares were
issued pursuant to the exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option (as defined in the
Company’s prospectus dated 12 August
2010). The proceeds of HK$53,904,600
representing the par value, were credited to
the Company’s share capital. The remaining
proceeds of HK$233,574,602, before the
share issuance costs of HK$41,319,094, were
credited to the share premium account.

Shares issued under the share option
scheme during the year are
summarised as follows:

24

BX - RERERE ()
(c) Me&(#)
(i)  BERABRERBITHRLE

(iii)

RZZE—ZFNAZ+HB AR
AR FER E R B 1.60BTT 2 B
MR & & B IR A R 166,800,000
BEREEIIE TLZRME  ©
XA ET - RZE—TF A,
A+tR ERELkEEER
AARBHE-_T—ZTFENA+Z
HZBIRER)BITEMmEITEIN
12,882,000% & 2 o FT 15 & 1A
53,904,600 TTHE NEHEE ' 2
BAKRRARRAR - TS IEMREE
233,574,602 7% 7T, (0B IR 15 BE 1T K
841,319,094 7% 7T AT ) B #8 A RR 15
S BAR o

FEXERETEHET ERITROE
M

Number of
share options Share Share  Share option
Share options exercised in: exercised Consideration capital premium reserve
EnEERRE
BB T T : 8B e RiaE BIRERAE
$
February 2012 “F-"F"f 3,020,000 2,083,800 906,000 1,814,068 (636,263)
March 2012 —E-ZF=f 120,000 82,800 36,000 72,082 (25,282)
For the year ended HE-S--F
31 March 2012 ZRA=T-RILEE 3,140,000 2,166,600 942,000 1,886,150 (661,550)

Bright Smart Securities & Commodities Group Limited ¢ Annual Report 2011/12



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MR

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24

(Continued)
(c) Share capital (Continued)

(iv) Terms of unexpired and unexercised
share options at the end of the
reporting period

Exercise period
1T

25 February 2011 to —T——%-A=-+FHH

X - HERKRE (E)

() B&(E)

(iv) FREEHAK i K= R i R AT Z
RIRERIR

2012
—E-——F
Number of

share options
EREHE

2011
—F—%
Number of
share options
BRESE

Exercise
price
TEE

24 February 2013 E-T-=F-A-+WH $1.12 — 18,348,000

13 October 2011 to —E——F+A+=48
12 October 2013 2-F-—=F+A+=H $0.69 16,268,000 —
16,268,000 18,348,000

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve
(i)  Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company may be applied for payment of
distributions or dividends to shareholders
provided that immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

BIBSEMEEBARAE ¢« —T——/ ——_FFW

(d RFEMHERBEN
(i) RiEE
REFASFHBRRE  ARFZK
175 B R AT R AE S IR T R
Z RS - HEEBERE S Ik
SR AR BHIR - AR BLAIE
AEXGERERENEDRET -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

130

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserve (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Merger reserve

0On 29 June 2010, the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of Bright Smart
Futures & Commodities Co., Ltd, Bright
Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited
and Merit Act Limited through Bright Smart
Investment Holdings Limited from their
respective shareholders. The difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired as a
result of the restructuring exercise and the
nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange thereof is
treated as an equity movement and recorded
in “Merger reserve”.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair
value of the actual number of unexercised
share options granted under the share
option scheme recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 2(k)(iii).

Distributability of reserve

The reserves of the Company are
distributable to the equity shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following the
distribution the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was
$193,585,643 (2011: $191,772,550).

24 BXR - HERKRE(E)

d) FEHERBEW(E)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EOEE
RZZE-—ZTFA=-+NB AR
AIBMR T REZRBRA R ME
FTHERERERAR - BAESH
B (B8 BRARIREEBRA
R BBARFWIEZE AR
EEITRA - REAES RIS 2
M@ AT 2 IRAEEEAR R R EEST
ZEAEEEARE) ME ZE8
RIERERS S RIE - Wk E A
Bl Ao

BREWFE

B I M 1 1 B2 FE AR BT A 2K (i) A
PARAD A B 2 BB ERA 2 G RT IR
RERR BB SR T2 K17
FEREREER#E ZATE -

7k ek 1

RIBARRQ R Z SR AR
&3 - WHRBEIEL 2 IR AR A
AEER—RAEXBBE IS
B ZAIEE - AR A AR
Rk -

R-T——F=A=+—8" al#
DIRTARAERR R 2 FEEES
%8 5193585643 7L( =T ——fF ¢
191,772,550 7¢) °
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

24 BEXR - #FERRE (&)

(e) capital management (e) EXEHE

The Group's primary objective when managing
capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost. In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Group
licensed by the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC") are obliged to meet the regulatory liquid
capital requirements under the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR") at all
times.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. For the licensed subsidiaries, the
Group ensures each of them maintains a liquid
capital level adequate to support the level of
activities with sufficient buffer to accommodate for
increases in liquidity requirements arising from
potential increases in the level of business
activities. During the financial year, all the licensed
subsidiaries complied with the liquid capital
requirements under the FRR at all times.

FAEBEREAZEEZRRRRELRE
BREREZE N BBRERR KT
R N BRTS B B LA R A B BB A RS
BE BESRRTREF R BEME
BB NSRRI - I BEHF L
EEBERZEe((FES]) R #E
ZAEEETHEB QB AR &
BESLHE (MHER) RA(HMBE
FRADET 2 EERBHETHE

AEBEBEBEEHRRTNEEELRE
B ERREHBERSEREKTZESK
BR[O R B AR 2 B A 5 0K 2 o B S AR
BZEBS T YHEREBEHERRZE
BHERNEBELAE - AEHBA
BIME - NEBERERSH B ARG RE
B2BERAE  BUAXHEBEE N
KRB EE ] e BB IR M ol HER
BES2FIREARTEENEW - B
REFENERER - AERFENBAR
AHBTHRERRABET RS ESD
HTE °
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREEUROCAERZNIE

PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme which was RARIERBE-ABRESE  RZZ—ZFF)N
adopted on 4 August 2010 by a resolution of the board AMNBBAAFRESTSBBRBEREREMN - A&
of directors of the Company whereby the employees, ERE  EE AeRphkEsaEK20HERE
consultants, contractors and directors of the Group are 2 FRFBHE BRI EEEBEM LR
entitled to the share option scheme. The options granted MERIRITE o B EBATER Ti58 AR
during the year have no vesting condition and are then B — I AS R B @AY o

exercisable within a period of two years. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of the Company.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (@) FARHBZHEARRBKEHEDT :
during the year are as follows:

Contractual
Number of Vesting life of share
share options conditions options
IB AR R
HBRESR 5B R4 HESES
Share options granted to MEERTZ
directors: R
— on 13 October 2011 —RZE——F
+A+=H 6,398,000 Nil 2 years
= MF
Share options granted to mEERE 2
employees: REfR i
— on 13 October 2011 —RZE——F
+A+=H 9,680,000 Nil 2 years
i M F
Share options granted to B RA]
consultants and contractors:  $%H > BERR#E
— on 13 October 2011 —RZE——F
+A+=AR 3,500,000 Nil 2 years
= M F
Total share options granted B AR E 19,578,000
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are as

25 EBEAEUROGBER ZHEE)

(b) BREHERMEFEGTEEDT :

follows:

2012
—E—_—F

Number of
share
options

BREHE

Weighted
average
exercise

price
ik B
TEE

2011

—F——F
Weighted
Number of average
share exercise
options price
TS
EREHE 1168

$
JT

Outstanding at the FHHARITE

beginning of the year 18,348,000 1.12 — —
Granted during the year FRRH 19,578,000 0.69 18,518,000 1.12
Exercised during the year FRITE (3,140,000) 0.69 — -
Cancelled during the year FREE (16,268,000) 1.12 — —
Lapsed during the year FRERK (2,250,000) 1.09 (170,000) 1.12
Outstanding at the end of FRINAKITE

the year 16,268,000 0.69 18,348,000 1.12
Exercisable at the end of FRAFITIE

the year 16,268,000 0.69 18,348,000 1.12

RZE-——F=A=1t—HREKRTEZ
BRETEERIOT(ZT——5F:
1.1270) - MAMEF AR TETNFEHRR15
F(CE——F 1 1.92%) -

The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had an
exercise price of $0.69 (2011: $1.12) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.5
years (2011: 1.92 years).
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS (Continued)

134

(c)

(d)

Modification of the share option —
change of exercise price and expiry date

On 13 October 2011, the Board approved a board
resolution to cancel all remaining 16,268,000
share options granted on 25 February 2011 with
an exercise price of $1.12 and grant new options
to the same grantees in exchange therefor with
an exercise price of $0.69. This was effectively a
modification to the share option scheme reducing
the exercise price for the share options granted
on 25 February 2011 from $1.12 to $0.69. The
expiry date for the share options was amended
to 12 October 2013. The reduction of exercise
price and the amendment of expiry date of the
above share options resulted in an incremental
fair value of $1,356,263 at the modification date.
The incremental fair value was recognised as an
equity-settled share-based payment expense
during the year.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to
the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of
early exercise are incorporated into the Black-
Scholes model.

25 EBEAEUROGBER ZHEE)

(c)

(d)

BREET —TREERIYPASE

RZE——F+A+=0 Bk
EEGRBER HHEAMBRZ—F
ZTAZTRBEEE 2T 16,268,000
MEERE - ETFEEA1.127T - MAAE
FAR AR THEREAERR - AT
8 20.697T - B i G Bt AR RE T 2
ERBRIERT BRZE——F A
T tHARH BRETEER112T
THZE069TT - BRIEZ ZIHRER A
—T—=F+A+=-H  LHBERETT
EETHARIBAAETERAFENE
o B B 101,356,263 7T © A F1{E 2 #E0
RFRNERERSEEURD BER
HIBR o

BREZ A FERRBRR

SIRBUR B B SEIRE 2 2 FE
D2EMBEHBEREZ ATFEFE - PT
RHOBEEE 2B A FEDRER DR
— HEAHEAE - BREZITOFE
BRAZERN - BHERFTESEAR
AR — FEHTRA -
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25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RERAEEURODAERZIRE(E)
PAYMENTS (Continued)
(d) Fair value of share options and (d BREZQAFLEREBR(E)

assumptions (Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

BREAFERREBR

Fair value at measurement date $0.10 $0.15
REtEB 8z AFE 0.10 T 0.157T
Share price $0.69 $1.07
& 0.69 T 1.07 7T
Exercise price $0.69 $1.12
TEE 0.69 T 1.127¢
Expected volatility 40.0% 39.4%
& HA R b

Option life 1 year 1year
B R i HA 15 14
Expected dividends 2.61% Nil
TR AR B i3
Risk-free interest rate 0.23% 0.64%

R AR

The expected volatility is derived with reference to TEEDRIE T2 ZERBAFMASERAH
the historic volatilities of a number of comparable KEBDITEREB 2 BRZAIELRA
companies operating within a similar industry and RIZES HEMET - BHKRE RiziB
business based on publicly available information. AREME - THHARK 2EF 8
Expected dividend vyield is based on historical EHATEIHEENEATE -

dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.
Share options were granted under no vesting R IERIBEFB R ME L - &
condition. There was no market condition B I e I AR RE 2 TS R o

associated with the share option granted.

BARHZEMEBERLT « —_T——/ ——FFHk 135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 MY

26

27

136

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26 RERNEE

The total future minimum lease payments under non- BRI 7 NA RS EETEAE T 7 R SE
cancellable operating lease on properties are payable as HEFIRREEN NH BB

follows:

Within one year —FR 28,162,913 25,136,336
After one year but within five years —FREAFA 8,100,269 26,391,850
36,263,182 51,528,186
The Group leases a number of properties under NEBEREQLIANMELIEYE « ZZRY
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial — RS AR —EEIE - AR BT
period of one year to four years, with an option to renew HEEZFUUEE - AOBTEESRES -

the leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 BERABREERERAFE
FAIR VALUES
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign AEBZBAREKPEEEE  KBDES - F
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s ERHNERRR o T XEMAEEAEE 2 %E
business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the B kA EERE R NSRBI T ER
financial risk management policies and practices used o B IR I 1B o
by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.
(@) cCredit risk (@ FEERR
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to rEEZEERBREIERBERER
accounts receivable due from clients, brokers and K R#EEFR BN - BEREEREE
clearing houses. Management has a credit policy B - WISEEREERE -
in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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In respect of accounts receivable due from clients,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
clients including cash and margin clients. Cash
clients are required to place deposits as prescribed
by the Group's credit policy before execution of
any purchase transactions. Receivables due from
cash clients are due within the settlement period
commonly adopted by the relevant market
convention, which is usually within a few days
from the trade date. Because of the prescribed
deposit requirements and the short settlement
period involved, credit risk arising from the
accounts receivable due from cash clients is
considered small. The Group normally obtains
liquid securities and/or cash deposits as collateral
for providing margin financing to its clients. Margin
loans due from margin clients are repayable on
demand. For commodities and futures broking,
initial margin is required before opening of a
trading position. Market conditions and adequacy
of securities collateral and margin deposits of each
margin account and futures account are monitored
by management on a daily basis. Margin calls and
forced liquidation are made where necessary.

In respect of accounts receivable from brokers and
clearing houses, credit risks are considered low as
the Group normally enters into transactions with
brokers and clearing houses which are registered
with regulatory bodies and with sound reputation
in the industry.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk as credits are granted to a large
population of clients.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the statement of financial position. The Group
does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

BABHERMEEERAT ¢« —T——/ —_FFH

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 MBEREERAFE(E)
FAIR VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERKEE)

EREFPERIOIE  MAERFP (BER
ERAREP)GARZEREETE -
RATERNBER S R XPAR
AEBEZEERRAEES AFK - &
WHREEFPHRADNNEBEHSIENEE
RAZEEHANIE  —RAXHAK
BIRA - ERIEEFFRE RFTE K4
B WEVREEPERRELZE
ERBREM - AEE-—REMEFTFPI
BRBESF L/ IREFERIERAAE
PlRRH#FERBREZERM BEIRE
PZHREFARERER - siEmM
HELLEBNS  RERMNAXNE
Aigd BEEESEBHERMRNARE
FREF RMERP 2 &5 E M mRR
FEROEH MAEFE REHRE
T RORITHR -

HRASE—RED WEEREEML
RENZRERFBEZ R MEEME
TRS  HERBELENEEMERRZE
ERBER -

HRAKERREEFPRERES  ®A
BEAKTEERR -

&= 15 B AR (X 8 5t S AR A7 P 5 4 38
) EM B KRATWHEEZ K@
B AEEYERFETAMEMER
SAREEEHEERR
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

138

FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, and to ensure compliance with
FRR. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirement and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and funding
in the short and longer term. All of the Group's
liabilities are expected to be settled within one
year. Except for bank loans, the carrying amounts
of all financial liabilities equal the contractual
undiscounted cash outflow. The contractual
undiscounted cash outflow of bank loans and loan
from a related company as at 31 March 2012
amounted to $605,395,808 (2011: $815,102,448).

27

MRRBERERAFEGE)

(b)

nRBEEER

AEEAERNKLEBAERAZED
BE BREEEFNENESREST
2 UHRTAMRERRY - NEH
ZBREREMERERBESHTE X
ETEERE  BMREREHRSHE
RERAABEEHE T EARRER
B URNEREARDESTE -

AEBZHEATHEEERRTBIR
HELHFE BMRAEBEHRGRES
RERNREHFZ - AKBZABEE
BEEAKR —FAERMN - RIFITERK
Sh BB ARCREESHEE TN
KREBREMEERE HNZT—F
—A=1+—RH HROEFERKE—RH
ERARCERZERHARMERS
i H 2 5605,395,808 L( =T — —4F
815,102,448 7T) °
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (continued)

()

Interest rate risk

(i)

Interest rate profile

The Group charges interest on its margin
clients on the basis of its cost of funding plus
a mark-up. Financial assets such as margin
loans and deposit with banks and financial
liabilities such as bank loans and loan from a
related company are primarily at fixed rates.
The Group's income and operating cash
flows are not subject to significant interest
rate risk.

The interest rate profile of the Group at the
reporting date is as follows:

27 BIBEMERERAFEE)

(c)

A= ke

(i) FIEEE
AEEREESRA S IRERFF
REPWERAME - BEEE (M
RERERITHER KB aE
RITERLRA —FKEAERRZE
R EBHETEEXRFTE - AKHE
ZWARBER G REY BELE
AR R

TREFIANEERHRE B2 F=E

Ba

2012 2011
—B--F —F—F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRRR= ERFI=
Assets BE
Deposits with banks RITTEN 0.001-1.4% 249,483,240 0.001-0.01% 265,868,809
Margin loans HEER 3.88%-4.88% 893,164,838 4.88% 997,367,347
1,142,648,078 1,263,236,156
Liabilities 8&
Bank loans RITER 2.05% 425,000,000 1.09% 815,000,000
Loan from a related company KE—KBENA N/A
ZER 2.55% 180,000,000 NEA —
605,000,000 815,000,000
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

140

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2012, if interest rates had
been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit
before taxation would have increased by
approximately $5,400,000 (2011: $4,500,000).

As at 31 March 2012, if interest rates had
been 1 basis point lower with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit
before taxation would have decreased by
approximately $54,000 (2011: $45,000).

The increased/decreased profit before
taxation results mainly from higher/lower
interest income from deposits with banks
and margin loans and higher/lower interest
expense on bank loans and loan from a
related company. Other components of
equity would not be significantly affected by
the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before taxation that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting dates and had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to interest rate risk at the
reporting dates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2011.

27

MRRBERERAFEGE)

(c)

FMRER ()
(i) SBHEDH

R-ZE——F=A=+—H &M
BEMEFEFIEZBRT » fH
M FFA100EEE - BIAEEZ
B B A 4t A & 25 O 495,400,000 7T
—Z——% :4,500,0007T) °

R-ZZE——F=ZA=+—8 " &F
EEMEEMEFTEZBERT 4
FETHIMEED  AAEE 2K
T AT i ) FE R A 4954,000 0 (=
——% :45,0007C) °

B 5 A AU 00, R I B R VR
THERRFRERZF S AL
R RIRITEFARKE —K
BEE N B 2 B SR AR
DA - B2 BB T g
EMEEBHMBEEATE

B GURE DM BRNRR A T E S
RERBLE - BEEEAREN
AEAKEMBEREE A HAR
HBHERERZEMTA  HAKE
Z BB M P Ak BB 8 - o
R — T ——F 7 AR AR
1T
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27
FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
arising from financial instruments that are
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”) and
Renminbi (“RMB"). As the Hong Kong dollar (“HKD")
is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the risk
of movements in exchange rates between the HKD
and the USD to be insignificant. In respect of
financial instruments denominated in RMB, the
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances. The management
monitors all the foreign currency positions on a
daily basis.

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity
analysis

The Group’s net exposure to RMB at the reporting
date and the estimated impact to the Group’s
profit before tax and retained profits for the year
had the foreign exchange rates of RMB changed at
that date are illustrated below. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD
and the USD would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the USD
against other currencies.

BEREERAFEGE)

(d) SMERBR

REBEFASINERREEREIAET
(EZETDEARETAREDHEZE
BTH - ARBTTEXTTHNE - AKE
R BTEETT 2 EXEEER K
e MUARBFHEZERTAMS -
AEEERTENBR NREHE XE
AREEINEANREER A FEE
Mo BAERERFEERNAEZZ
KF - ERETG A EEAEINERA -

S LB R IE R B E D AT

WREAZARBEXGEMES KK
BN mE AR ARBASZRERFE
DA R B3 A 55 8 6 1R 2 R A5 BT ) K% AR
B2 et EIRIT - st
5 ERRAETEXTEXHABIER
INHEMEREBZEMNEBHMIE
BEAXE-

2012
~g--fF =
Effect on Effect on
Appreciation/  profit before Appreciation/  profit before
Net assets (depreciation) tax and Net assets  (depreciation) tax and
in foreign in foreign retained in foreign in foreign retained
currency currency profits currency currency
B
AR
UMEHE  MERES RERR
ZEERE (Rf8) 258
HK$ % HK$
Renminbi ARE 6,860,309 5 343,015 346,419 5 17,321
(5) (343,015) (5) (17,321)
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28
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Exposure to currency risk and sensitivity
analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2011.

(e) Fair values

All financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, subsidiaries of the
Company engaging in securities and futures broking
have secured banking facilities from authorised
institutions for a total amount of $623,000,000 (2011:
$466,000,000). The Company has issued corporate
guarantees for a total principal amount of $623,000,000
(2011: $466,000,000) for these facilities. As at 31 March
2012, the subsidiary has utilised $325,000,000 of these
aggregate banking facilities (2011: $145,000,000).

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do
not consider it probable a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees. The Company
has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably
measured and the transaction price was nil.

27

28

MERBERERAFE(E)

(d) SERERE)
S L B AR AR R B A ()

FRESTEBRINEER ZEEHEE
AREBEFAERNREMHEEE BEHAN
SEEEINERRZERTA - ZBED
R R =T ——FHR 2 BT -

(e) A¥E
RZTE——FR-_T——F=A=+—
B FIEVBEERBBZHREESERD
FHEITESEAER -

XARAR

RBEHR - EBHFIHPERL 2 AT
BARERARBISAERMBTRESH
623,000,0007T ( =F ——%F : 466,000,0007T) °
ARFERZEREBLASRLER
623,000,0007T ( =& — — £ : 466,000,0007T )
ZATER RZE—Z-F=A=+—H W
J& ~ B 2 B A a3 IR 17 B & 48 %7 325,000,000
7T (==& ——4 : 145,000,0007T) °

RI|BEBR - EFRRAERBERERRFR
HEMHEROEETK - HRERZAFED
REASEFERRSERT  MARRLEMZ
SRR EARLTRA -
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of
the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company's directors as disclosed in note 8 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 9, is as follows:

29 ERBEALRS

BRI TSR B A D WEZBBEA L BRI -
AREBTETIERBEALRS °

() ETEEEABEHMH

AEBMETEEEABZHM(BIENES
I BERARRABEERMEIMBER
ETReFMEEXNZ2B) T

Directors’ fees B0 387,012 216,782
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind < « 2B N EWEF] 9,326,904 8,216,638
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 914,350 4,082,840

Contributions to Mandatory SRIES K
Provident Fund 81,000 102,739
Payment in lieu of notice KBNS — 2,400,000
Equity-settled share-based payments S EE ARG BER 2508 733,489 1,438,301
11,442,755 16,457,300

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

FrMmEst ATE TR I(RHTEE6(b))
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

144

(i)

(if)

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had
accounts payable to related parties of
$5,192,421 (2011: $366,535), which were
arising from the Group's ordinary course of
business in securities broking, margin
financing and commodities and futures
broking.

Accounts payable to related parties are set
at same terms as those normally offered to
third party clients.

As at 31 March 2012, included in the other
receivables, deposits and prepayments were
rental and office management deposits of
$3,562,373 (2011: $3,187,117) which had
been made to related companies owned by
a director of the Company. These amounts
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
upon expiry of the respective leases.

(c) oOther transactions with related parties

(i)

Brokerage income of $591,338 (2011:
$296,035) was received from the directors of
the Company, their close family members
and related companies owned by a director
of the Company in the ordinary course of the
Group's business of securities broking and
commodities and futures broking.
Ccommission rates are set at the same level
as those normally offered to third party
clients.

Rental expenses of $11,940,161 (2011:
$10,716,053) paid to related companies
owned by a director of the Company, were
charged at a rate mutually agreed between
the parties involved with reference to market
rates.

29 ERBEALRSF (&)

(b) EHREALZEER

(i)

(if)

R-_E——F=ZA=+—8 &%
B e~ B3 A = 2 BREUA 5,192,421
TT(=ZZF——% :366,53570) * Uit
TRERNEBBEEGPA#ETZ
BAHELD - FFREFVE DA K 72 on B2 HA

RN BEANLIRRE—REBEHTH
=ARPEHGER -

MR-ZE——F=fF=+—8  Hft
FEWGRIE - e RBNHREFRA
3562373T( = & — —
3,187, 17 T) BRMARF —HE
EHAZBERRIN 2 HE R
REBFBRS - WEFRIBAEIKRT
k&g - WiHRMERHELERE
8 o

(c) EEBEALXzHMRS

(i)

AW AB91,338TL(ZE——5F :
296,0357T) HASE B E XK E
TEFRLEARARERERLE
BMAARRESE - KEZ KKK
ENARR-—ZEEHRABAZHEER
AIYE - MEREBER —RAF=
HEPRHEZBRIKF o

Eff—BARRESHE2BER
Rl &R &E 11,940,161 (==
— — 4 :10,716,0537C ) TR T 49
F2EMBBERYE 2 BET

sets
= o
>t
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29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(iii)

The total future minimum lease payment
under non-cancellable operating lease on
properties are payable to related companies
owned by a director of the Company as
follows:

29 ERBEALRSF (&)

() BEEEALZHMRIS (E)

(iii)

HRIEA ] O S AL R R
ARR—REERBLEERFZ
RRSEHERBRRNT -

Within one year —FR 13,220,000 11,544,000
After one year but within five years —4E/2{B L E X 1,035,000 11,384,000
14,255,000 22,928,000

On 31 March 2011, Bright Smart Securities
International (H.K.) Limited (“BSSI”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan facility letter
with China Finance (Worldwide) Limited
("CFW"), a company which is 100%
beneficially owned by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for provision of
a $310,000,000 revolving loan facility by CFW
to BSSI for general working capital purposes.
Interest expense of $3,145,095 was paid to
CFW during the year (2011: $Nil). The loan
bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.25% per
annum, is unsecured and repayable on
demand. As at 31 March 2012, BSSI has
drawn $180,000,000 (2011: $Nil) under this
facility.

(iv)

R-ZE——F=ZA=+—8 " BF
BHBR(EB)ARAEBSS -
KAz @E2ENBAG)EA
B84 75 (BIBR ) B R 2~ &) ([ A B B
Bl RARZERBREZEER
BAZAR)ETERME R -
WA A 48 B B 75 1) BSSI TR i 1B 3R
& AL & 310,000,000 7T - B E—
MEBED - FRMATBEMBEIA
A BFI% 3,145,095t ( — T ——4F :
Ton) c BEREBEBRITAERE
N2.25% FFI LGB - BEEIT R
BIRBREE - N_T——F=A
=+—H - BSSIIREZRE 2R
180,0000007c( = & — — & : &
TT) e
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31
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

(vy  On 31 March 2011, the Company entered
into a loan facility letter with World Mix
Limited ("WML"), a company which is 100%
beneficially owned by the controlling
shareholder of the Company, for provision of
a $310,000,000 revolving loan facility by WML
to the Company for general working capital
purposes. Interest expense of $1,220,663
was paid to WML during the year (2011: $Nil).
The loan bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.25%
per annum, is unsecured and repayable on
demand. As at 31 March 2012, no drawdown
was made (2011: $Nil) under this facility.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Bright Smart Securities International (H.K.) Limited, one
of the Group's subsidiaries, is defending a defamation
claim brought against it by Chief Securities Limited on 15
May 2012 for an unquantified amount of damages and
costs. The matter is now in its early stage of proceeding.
The Group is pending senior counsel’s advice and is
unable to assess the outcome of this claim, no
provisions have been made in respect of this claim.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate holding company of the Company as at 31
March 2012 to be New Charming Holdings Limited,
which is incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin
Islands and beneficially owned by Mr. YIP Mow Lum.
New Charming Holdings Limited does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

29

30

31

EXRBEALRS (E)

() BEEALZHMRS (&)

v) R-Z——F=ZA=+—H  £&AA
RIEHHRBERAR((HH] - AR
AZEBRBRRE2EE=HEB LA
A)EERBERT  NABEH
timmARRIEHBERERME
310,000,0007T * AE— M EEE
e FAMEHZINMNBERAL
1,220,663 L (ZF——%F : Tjr) ©
ERREBRITRZEREM2.25%
FMEHE - REHRRAKREN
BB R-_E——F=A=+—
B BMEEREAEEmE (=%
——F:F5) o

BREHERERARER

AEEMBARZ RABHER (FE)AR
ARABRERBERFBRARNNR T —_F1
ATHBRFERZFSNBERELNE  ZHR
FREAZBANERRERETE - RUERESEAN
EREFNSER  AEELEHEFERKZE
B ERB R MR AEHERRZER
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HERRRERAT
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and five
new standards which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2012 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

BEMGRELERNETRZIEE] £HTA -
BE —BETHAE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

BERTERIE 125 85T « ATiEf — BLEFIE -
YeBIFh g A =

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
BRGHENFE VR IEE] IBREZZR —
A2 EWAIRE 22

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

BB BIRELERFE 05 - LS HEHREK

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities
BRUIETREER|FE 1257 - B EREEZ 2 5
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
EBUIEREER|F 1358 - A FEHE

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
BESIERE 27 B BHRE(ZF——F)
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

BB GFTHERIE 1958 (KIUZR]) - IESEF

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BTG RELERNEIR  eHTA

&

The Group is in the process of assessing of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

BABZEMEBERDE ¢ —T——/ ——_FFW

32 REE-ZE-—_"F=A=+—-HILHF
EEBMEERER BT - HER
REREURELZXE

BEHEVHERETEAN  BEGHOLAE
EEMATIREBE—_T——F=A=1t—HL
FIE M AR AR B BRI SRR P R 2
AT RAEHNEL  BRATEAKES
& -

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after
REstHRE
R ZBFRER

1 July 2011

—E——F+A—H

1 January 2012

—E——-F—H—H

1 July 2012

—E——-F+AH—H
1 January 2013
—F-=%—HA—H
1 January 2013
—FE—=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—FE—=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—FE—=F—H—H
1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H

1 January 2015
—E—RF—A—H
ANEEIFETEZSIERTE B X E R AL
EEZFE 25 BERARMEMEBETK
AIREE AR EE 2 L EE R BAMOREREX
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBERE

Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=1+—HILEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—E——F —T——F —ZT-TF ZZTTNF ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FEr FEr

Turnover B 228,707 188,202 140,240 78,743 176,353
Profit before taxation B T8 BT S ) 73,351 48,635 72,211 25,011 72,141
Income tax Fris i (12,715) (8,017) (11,927) (3,876) (12,057)
Profit for the year F A F 60,636 40,618 60,284 21,135 60,084

As at 31 March

MR=A=+—8H

Assets and Liabilities % = 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—EB--F —T——F E-FTF TTNF ZTT)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FET FET FET FET

Current assets MEVEE 1,555,492 1,709,199 930,086 388,651 417,335

Non-current assets ERBEE 34,687 45,766 12,239 9,486 11,606

Total assets BERBE 1,590,179 1,754,965 942,325 398,137 428,941

Current liabilities mEaE 1,096,188 1,312,871 790,273 190,032 242,152

Non-current liabilities IERFEaE 193 515 — 288 107

Total liabilities BERE 1,096,381 1,313,386 790,273 190,320 242,259

Net assets BEFE 493,798 441,579 152,052 207,817 186,682
The results and summary of assets and liabilities for the years HEZZZN\F —_ZEZENFRZZE—ZF=A

ended 31 March 2008, 2009 and 2010 which were extracted
from the Company’s prospectus dated 12 August 2010 have
been prepared on a combined basis to indicate the results of
the Group as if the group structure, at the time when the
Ccompany’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, had
been in existence throughout those years.

E-i——Eiﬁ@Z%%ﬁ&éﬁE&ﬁ%ﬁx(ﬁﬁﬁ§$
REARZZE—ZEFNATZBREZBRER) IR
BRAEERE  NBRAKEZFE EIART]
BORBRA LM ASERBREERBFED
FH) °
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